
BOROUGH OF BARROW-IN-FURNESS

PLANNING COMMITTEE

Meeting: Tuesday, 15th September, 2020 at 2.30 pm 

Site Visits

There are no site visits on this occasion

A G E N D A

VIRTUAL MEETING - Link to view Live Stream via YouTube 

This meeting will be a virtual meeting and therefore will not take place in a physical 
location following guidelines set out in Section 78 of the Coronavirus Act 2020.

Note: The Council will be live streaming the meeting to the Barrow Borough Council 
YouTube Channel which can be viewed live via the link below.

The whole of the meeting will be recorded, except where there are confidential or exempt 
items.

To view the meeting online click this link

PART ONE 

1.  Apologies for Absence/Attendance of Substitute Members.  

2.  Urgent Items

To note any items which the Chairman considers to be of an urgent 
nature. 

3.  Delegations

To receive notice from Members who may wish to move any 
delegated matter non-delegated and which will be decided by a 
majority of Members present and voting at the meeting.

4.  Admission of Public and Press

To consider whether the public and press should be excluded from 
the meeting during consideration of any of the items on the agenda.

5.  Declarations of Interest

To receive declarations by Members and/or co-optees of interests in 
respect of items on this Agenda. 

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCBYFa9sjxuGwCW5BQwu9mlw/live


Members are reminded that, in accordance with the revised Code of 
Conduct, they are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary 
interests or other registrable interests which have not already been 
declared in the Council’s Register of Interests.  (It is a criminal 
offence not to declare a disclosable pecuniary interest either in the 
Register or at the meeting).

Members may however, also decide, in the interests of clarity and 
transparency, to declare at this point in the meeting, any such 
disclosable pecuniary interests which they have already declared in 
the Register,  as well as any other registrable or other interests.  

6.  Confirmation of Minutes

To confirm the Minutes of the meeting held on 4th August, 2020.

5 - 12

7.  Public Participation

Any member of the public who wishes to ask a question, make 
representations or present a deputation or petition at this meeting 
should apply to do so by no later than 12 noon, three working days 
before the date of the Planning Committee meeting.  Information on 
how to make the application can be obtained by viewing the Council’s 
website www.barrowbc.gov.uk or by contacting the Planning 
Business Support Team at consultplanning@barrowbc.gov.uk or by 
telephone on 01229 876405.
 
(1) Planning Applications – for which requests to speak have been 

made; and

(2) Agenda items – for which requests to speak have been made.

8.  Delegated Approvals - For Information (Booklet attached)

To note the delegated approvals.

13 - 30

FOR DECISION 

(D) 9.  Planning Applications (Booklet attached).  

To determine the following planning applications:-

Car Body Repair Workshop, Schneider Road, Barrow-in-Furness 
– Application for Outline Planning Permission with all matters 
reserved for existing workshops to be replaced by ten domestic 
dwellings;

123 Rawlinson Street, Barrow-in-Furness – Change of use from a 
vacant ground floor office (class B1) to a one bedroom self contained 
flat (class C3) with associated external alterations; and

31 - 108

http://www.barrowbc.gov.uk/
mailto:consultplanning@barrowbc.gov.uk


Land adjacent to 15 Stone Dyke Lane, Barrow-in-Furness – 
Application for Outline Planning Permission for the erection of a 
dwelling.

NOTE (D) – Delegated
(R) – For Referral to Council

INVITATIONS TO SPEAK TO THE COMMITTEE (2.30 pm.)

Membership of Committee

Councillors Assouad
Burley
D. Edwards
Gawne
Hall
Husband
McEwan
Mooney
Nott
Seward
C. Thomson (Vice-Chair)
M. A. Thomson (Chair)

For queries regarding this agenda, please contact:
Paula Westwood
Democratic Services Officer 
(Member Support)
01229 876322
pwestwood@barrowbc.gov.uk

Published: Monday 7th September, 2020



This page is intentionally left blank



PLANNING COMMITTEE

Meeting: Tuesday 4th August, 2020
at 2.30 pm. (Virtual Meeting)

PRESENT:- Councillors M. A. Thomson (Chairman), C. Thomson (Vice-Chairman), 
Assouad, Burley, D. Edwards, Gawne, Hall, Husband, McEwan, Nott, Preston and 
Seward.

Officers Present:- Charles Wilton (Principal Planning Officer), Jason Hipkiss 
(Development Services Manager – Planning and Enforcement), Debbie Storr (Head 
of Legal and Governance & Monitoring Officer), Paula Westwood (Democratic 
Services Officer - Member Support) and Sandra Kemsley (Democratic Services 
Officer).

16 – Apologies for Absence/Attendance of Substitute Members

An apology for absence had been received from Councillor Mooney. 

Councillor Preston had attended as a substitute for Councillor Mooney for this 
meeting only.

17 – Declarations of Interest

Councillor Gawne declared an interest in any matter relating to Cumbria County 
Council as he was a Member of that Council.

Councillor Hall declared an interest in Planning Application No. 2020/0091 – Land at 
Sandy Gap Lane, Barrow-in-Furness (Minute No. 22) as he was a member of the 
Biggar Bank Community Group.

Councillors McEwan declared an interest in any matter relating to Cumbria County 
Council as he was a Member of that Council.  He also declared an interest in 
Planning Application No. 2020/0091 – Land at Sandy Gap Lane, Barrow-in-Furness 
(Minute No. 22) as two of the objectors were known to him.

Councillor M. A. Thomson declared an interest in Planning Application No. 
2020/0091 – Land at Sandy Gap Lane, Barrow-in-Furness (Minute No. 22) as two of 
the objectors were known to her.

18 – Minutes

The Minutes of the meeting held on 14th July, 2020 were taken as read and 
confirmed.

19 – Public Participation

RESOLVED:- Dr. David Haley, Maddi Nicholson and Charlie Mackeith (Objectors) 
and Mr Harry Tonge, Steve Abbott Associates LLP (Agent on behalf of the applicant) 
addressed the Committee in relation to the Planning Application in respect of the 

Page 5

Agenda Item 6



installation of a sculpture to mark the start/finish of the Bay Cycle Way on Land at 
Sandy Gap Lane, Barrow-in-Furness (Minute No. 22 refers).  No deputations or 
petitions had been received in respect of the meeting.

20 – Removal of Enforcement Notice on Land at Quarry Side/Quarry Lodge, 
Dalton-in-Furness

The Development Services Manager (Planning and Enforcement) reported that a 
request had been received to remove an enforcement notice dated from 2007 
pertaining to non-compliance with a condition to provide an access with Adoptable 
surfacing.  

He reported that planning consent had been granted for a single house (2000/0245), 
with Condition No. 5 requiring that the access road from Lord Street was built in 
accordance with the approved plans.  The road had not been constructed, and the 
Authority had issued an Enforcement Notice following occupation of the house when 
the breach had occurred.

In 2012 the works had been carried out in conjunction with a further application to 
build a bungalow on an adjacent site.  The entire width of the access had been 
finished in tarmac and suitably designed to service the two dwellings in agreement 
with Cumbria County Council but no application to remove the notice had been 
submitted to the Borough at that time.  The Notice has remained valid since and this 
application had been prompted by the upcoming sale of the house.

An application had now been submitted to request that the Enforcement Notice be 
withdrawn, on the basis that the access works had previously been completed and 
that Cumbria Highways do not object to the present arrangement.  It had been noted 
that informal discussions with Cumbria County Council Highways had been carried 
out and there had been no objection to the arrangement as built.

RESOLVED:- To agree to the withdrawal of the Enforcement Notice as the road had 
been completed.

Town and Country Planning Acts

21 – Delegated Decisions

The Director of People and Place submitted for information details of planning 
applications in this report which he had determined under delegated authority 
(Minute No. 254, Planning Committee, 3rd September, 2002, confirmed by Council 
24th September, 2002).  The decisions are reported for your information.  The plans 
recommended for approval under the Town and Country Planning Acts will be 
subject to the standard conditions referred to in Minute No. 208 (April 1971) of the 
Plans Sub-Committee, Barrow-in-Furness, County Borough Council, in addition to 
any conditions indicated hereunder.  Applications with a (P) beside the applicant’s 
name denotes those applications that were reported to the Planning Panel.

RESOLVED:- (i) To note the decisions made under the Town and Country Planning 
Act 1990 (as amended) as follows:-

Page 6

Agenda Item 6



2020/0060 Change of use from a general industrial (B2) to mixed general 
industrial and tool and equipment/plan hire (sui-generis), including the 
erection of steel portal framed workshop/storage building and location 
of a portaloo style toilet facility (re-submission of 2018/0783 in a 
revised form) at Larkin Engineering Services Ltd, Walney Road, 
Barrow-in-Furness.

2020/0170 Application for works to Sycamore Tree – prune from adjacent 
structure to achieve 1m clearance (numbered T1267 on plan) subject 
of Tree Preservation Order 1972 No. 2 at Vicarage Mount, Barrow-in-
Furness.

2020/0256 Listed Building Consent for alteration to timber staircase, removal of 2 
no. stairs, extension of landing and installation of 2 no. 2 step stair 
sets to create bifurcated stair, new sections of stud wall and alteration 
to internal door arrangement at St Georges House, Salthouse Road, 
Barrow-in-Furness.

2020/0306 Advertisement Consent to display 2 non illuminated pvc fascia signs 
to gable end facing Oxford Street (sponsor adverts) and Furness 
Cricket Club, Oxford Street, Barrow-in-Furness.

2020/0311 Erection of a rear living room and bedroom extension with side 
bedroom extension - re-submission of 2019/0427 at 7 Dendron Close, 
Dalton-in-Furness.

2020/0323 Construction of detached outbuilding to rear of property at 10 
Thirlmere Close, Dalton-in-Furness.

2020/0330 Change of use of vacant ground floor shop to a one bedroom flat - re-
submission of B20/2020/0005 at 138 Cavendish Street, Barrow-in-
Furness.

2020/0317 Demolish existing garage and replace with a garage and attached 
shed at 38 Derbyshire Road, Barrow-in-Furness.

2020/0252 Single storey side extension forming extended kitchen at 32 Verdun 
Avenue, Barrow-in-Furness.

2020/0220 Erection of a two storey extension forming ground floor garage and 
extended first floor bedroom 1 and extended bathroom at first floor 
level and a rear single storey extension forming a sunroom at 37 
Amphitrite Street, Barrow-in-Furness.

2020/0322 Proposed rear single storey infill extensions and new pitched roof 
structure in lieu of existing flat roof structure to southeast elevation at 
1 Infield Crescent, Barrow-in-Furness.

2020/0221 Advertisement consent to display:

Page 7

Agenda Item 6



1 No. single sided built up logos;
1 No. 600mm Dia. new car park sign;
2 No. Banner Frames;
1 No. 600mm single sided car park sign;
1 No. 600mm flat aluminium panel (goods delivery)
1 No. Totem with dark grey header panels and blue faced built up 
logo;
1 No. 600mm single sided car park sign;
1 No. heritage projection sign through individual 3D letters to both 
side of mounting plate;
1 No. single sided car park sign (bicycle)
at Co-operative Retail Services, 307-309 Abbey Road, Barrow-in-
Furness.

2020/0291 Approval of Conditions No. 4 (Field Investigation and Risk 
Assessment), No. 6 (Hard surfaced areas), No. 7 (Bat and Bird 
boxes), No. 8 (Drainage Design) for planning application B13/2019/-
0805 (Erection of a single storey 2 bedroom detached bungalow) 
(Resubmission of B13/2019/0206 in a revised form) on Land adjacent 
to 10 Marsh Street, Askam-in-Furness.

2020/0293 Single storey flat roofed side extension for use as a Committee Room. 
Provision of a unisex disabled wc/baby changing facilities for 
spectators in lieu of existing Committee Room at Holker Old Boys 
Club, Rakesmoor Lane, Barrow-in-Furness.

2020/0325 Demolition of existing conservatory and external staircase; 
construction of new single storey rear living/kitchen/dining extension 
and single storey side utility extension; enlargement of bay window; 
external and internal remodelling/alteration (Re-submission of 
2019/0708) at Baili Hai, Ann Street, Dalton-in-Furness.

2020/0356 Erection of single storey wrap-around side and rear extension to 
provide store, kitchen/living/dining/area and shower room at 60 
Victoria Road, Barrow-in-Furness.

2020/0231 Proposed loft conversion forming 2 additional bedrooms and en-suite 
bathroom, construction of new porch, provision of new pitched roof to 
garage in lieu of existing flat roof at West Garth, Newton Cross Road, 
Newton-in-Furness.

2020/0279 Application for a Certificate of Lawfulness of Proposed Use or 
Development (CLOPUD) for the erection of a concrete sectional 
double garage at Keral House, Teasdale Road, Barrow-in-Furness.

2020/0241 Demolition of existing attached single storey side building; 
construction of new single storey side extension containing dining 
room and utility room; construction of two storey rear extension 
forming enlarged living room study and bedrooms; internal alterations 

Page 8

Agenda Item 6



to form additional bedroom (Resubmission of B21/2019/0748 to a 
revised scheme) at 44 Dalton Fields Lane, Dalton-in-Furness.

2020/0239 Two storey side extension, single storey rear extension and internal 
alterations forming extended kitchen/dining room, additional sitting 
room and additional bedroom at 34 Glenridding Drive, Barrow-in-
Furness.

2020/0351 Single storey rear extension at 7 Poplar Bank, Barrow-in-Furness as 
shown on plan number 2020/0351.

The following application had been refused:-

2020/0327 Application for works to trees subject of Tree Preservation Order 1990 
No. 12 - to remove branches of two Beech and three Lime trees which 
overhang Mill Brow Lodge, at Abbotswood Cottage, Abbey Road, 
Dalton-in-Furness.

(ii) To note the decisions made under the Building Act 1984/The Building 
Regulations 2010 as submitted by the Principal Building Control Surveyor.

Town and Country Planning Acts

The Development Services Manager (Planning and Enforcement) reported on the 
following planning applications:-

22 – Land at Sandy Gap Lane, Barrow-in-Furness

From Morecambe Bay Partnership in respect of the installation of a sculpture to mark 
the start/finish of the Bay Cycle Way on land at Sandy Gap Lane, Barrow-in-Furness 
as shown on plan number 2020/0091.

Representations received and the results of consultations were reported.

The Agent and three objectors addressed the Committee.

The Principal Planning Officer advised the Committee that Condition No.3 within the 
report relating to the requirement of a Construction Method Statement was no longer 
relevant as the relevant information had been submitted.

It was moved by Councillor McEwan and seconded by Councillor Husband, a roll call 
was undertaken and it was,

RESOLVED:- That planning permission be granted subject to the Standard Duration 
Limit and the following conditions:-

1. The development must be begun not later than the expiration of three 
years beginning with the date of this permission.

Reason

Page 9

Agenda Item 6



Required to be imposed pursuant to Section 91 of the Town and Country 
Planning Act 1990, as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and 
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

Compliance with Approved Plans

2. The development shall be carried out and completed in all respects in 
accordance with the application dated 04/02/20 and the hereby 
approved documents defined by this permission as listed below, except 
where varied by conditions attached to this consent:

3390-100 Rev A
001-CB-ARTS Rev B
Envirotech Ecological Report ref: 5982
Construction Method Statement 3390-CMS-SGW rev 1

Reason

To ensure that the development is carried out only as indicated on the 
drawings approved by the Planning Authority.

23 – Proposed Housing Site, Crompton Drive, Dalton-in-Furness

From Moorsolve Pension Scheme in respect of an application for a Minor Material 
Amendment following the grant of planning permission B07/2018/0089 (Construction 
of 11, 3 and 4 bed houses including roads and sewers) to provide a revised access 
to plots 6 and 7 involving a new access onto Abbey Road and which shall carry the 
proposed public right of way at proposed housing site, Crompton Drive, Dalton-in-
Furness as shown on plan number 2019/0778.

Consideration of this application had been deferred at the last meeting (Minute No. 
15 of the meeting on 14th July, 2020 refers), since the Committee had been minded 
to refuse the application as the formation of a new vehicular access would harm the 
character of the green wedge and thereby conflict with Local Plan Policy GI2.  At that 
meeting it had also been requested that a virtual site visit be facilitated by the 
Planning Officer and presented to Members virtually.

Representations received and the results of consultations were reported.

The site visit had been presented virtually to Members of the Committee immediately 
prior to this meeting.  

It was moved by Councillor Hall and seconded by Councillor McEwan that the 
application be refused and that a Tree Preservation Order be placed on all of the 
trees along that stretch of Abbey Road.  A roll call was undertaken and it was 
unanimously,

RESOLVED:- (i) To refuse the application for the following reason:-

Page 10

Agenda Item 6



The formation of the vehicular access would harm the character of the Green Wedge 
as a result of introducing additional urban features namely the formation of the 
opening, associated retaining walls, and access drive which would appear discordant 
features in the semi-rural landscape identified as a green wedge.  The harm would 
be exacerbated by loss of trees which have some group value contributing to the 
overall greenery and the additional opening up of the approved development in 
views from Abbey Road.  This harm is considered to be significantly greater than 
would occur compared to a level pedestrian access due to the increased width of a 
vehicular access.  Approval would thereby conflict with Local Plan Policy GI2 which 
seeks to protect green wedges as spaces which provide visual relief and a sense of 
separation between settlements; and

(ii)  To agree that a Tree Preservation Order be placed on the trees on the east side 
of Abbey Road, Dalton-in-Furness as identified in the Tree Report accompanying 
the application.

The meeting closed at 3.15 pm.

Page 11

Agenda Item 6



This page is intentionally left blank



   

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 
 
 
 
 

Delegated Decisions made between 
 
 

 
and 

 
 
 
 
 

For Information 
 

 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen, 
 
Town & Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended) 
Planning (Listed buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 (as amended) 
Town & Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 
2015 (as amended) 
Town and County Planning (Control of Advertisements) (England) Regulations 2007. 
 
The Planning applications in this report have been determined by the Development 
Services Manager (Planning) under delegated authority (Minute No. 107, Executive 
Committee, 7th February 2018, confirmed by Council 1st March 2018 (Minute No. 63). 
The decisions are reported for your information. 
 

 

 

 

Assistant Director of Regeneration and Built Environment 

15/09/2020

23/07/2020

02/09/2020

Page 13

Agenda Item 8



   

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Reference:
B28/2019/0779

Decision:
REFUSED

Decision Date:
05/08/2020

Location:
Abbey Road/Crompton Drive Dalton-in-Furness
Cumbria

Proposal:
Application for approval of details reserved by
condition No. 9 (footpath link from development to
Abbey Road) of planning permission
B07/2018/0089 (Construction of 11, 3 and 4 bed
houses including roads and sewers)

Ward:
Dalton South
Ward

Parish:
Dalton Town
with Newton
Parish Council

Case Officer:
Charles Wilton

Reference:
B28/2019/0837

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
29/07/2020

Location:
Paint Facility, BAE Systems, Bridge Road, Barrow-
in-Furness, Cumbria, LA14 1AF

Proposal:
Approval of details reserved by condition no. 7
(Car Parking Strategy) for planning application
B08/2015/0417 (Paint facility with associated
construction compound, infrastructure and related
works)

Ward:
Barrow Island
Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Maureen Smith

Reference:
B28/2019/0838

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
29/07/2020

Location:
BAE Systems, Bridge Road, Barrow-in-Furness,
Cumbria, LA14 1AF

Proposal:
Application for approval of details reserved by
condition No. 4 (car parking strategy) of planning
permission 2015/0422 (Extensions to the New
Assembly Shop and associated site infrastructure
and related works)

Ward:
Barrow Island
Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Maureen Smith

Reference:
B28/2019/0833

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
29/07/2020

Location:
Devonshire Dock Hall, North Road, Barrow-in-
Furness, Cumbria

Proposal:
Approval of details reserved by condition No. 7
(Car Parking Strategy) for planning application
B06/2015/0179 (Extension to Devonshire Dock
Hall, to comprise two new buildings, link corridor,
new gate house, security gate, alterations to site
access, cycle shelters, security fencing and
associated hard landscaping, infrastructure and
related works)

Ward:
Barrow Island
Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Maureen Smith

Page 14

Agenda Item 8



   

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Reference:
B28/2019/0836

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
29/07/2020

Location:
Central Yard Complex, BAE Systems, Bridge
Road, Barrow-in-Furness, Cumbria, LA14 1AF

Proposal:
Approval of details reserved by condition No.7 (Car
Parking Strategy) for planning application
B31/2016/0013 (Application for variation of
condition no. 3 of planning permission 2015/0363
(Central Yard Complex with associated site
infrastructure and related works) to include "Piling
operations" as an exempted activity. (S73 Town &
Country Planning Act 1990)

Ward:
Barrow Island
Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Maureen Smith

Reference:
B21/2020/0352

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
24/07/2020

Location:
58 Dane Avenue Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria LA14
4JY

Proposal:
Erection of a rear ground floor extension to form
dining area and covered external seating area, and
erection of a 1st floor extension to front elevation
providing a 4th bedroom

Ward:
Hawcoat Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Jennifer
Dickinson

Reference:
B13/2020/0382

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
19/08/2020

Location:
17 Paradise Ireleth Askam-in-Furness Cumbria
LA16 7HA

Proposal:
Demolition of existing house and construction of a
replacement dwelling and detached garage (Re-
submission of B13/2020/0216 in a revised form)

Ward:
Dalton North
Ward

Parish:
Askam and
Ireleth Parish
Council

Case Officer:
Barry Jesson

Reference:
B21/2020/0316

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
24/08/2020

Location:
Tranquil Newton Cross Road Newton-in-Furness
Cumbria LA13 0NB

Proposal:
Construction of single storey lean-to side extension
to form a garden store

Ward:
Dalton South
Ward

Parish:
Dalton Town
with Newton
Parish Council

Case Officer:
Barry Jesson

Page 15

Agenda Item 8



   

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Reference:
B21/2020/0442

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
20/08/2020

Location:
22 Powerful Street Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA14 3PJ

Proposal:
Demolition of existing conservatory and
construction of new single storey rear extension
forming open-plan living/kitchen/dining space

Ward:
Walney North
Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Vivienne
Pearson

Reference:
B21/2020/0389

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
26/08/2020

Location:
9 Croslands Park Road, Barrow-in-Furness,
Cumbria, LA13 9LA

Proposal:
Erection of a rear single storey kitchen extension.

Ward:
Newbarns
Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Jennifer
Dickinson

Reference:
B21/2020/0192

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
28/07/2020

Location:
81 Croslands Park, Barrow-in-Furness, Cumbria,
LA13 9LB

Proposal:
Demolition of existing outhouse, erection of a rear
double pitched roof sun room extension, two infill
extensions for usage as utility room and kitchen
extension/side extensions,
new pitched roof store abutting proposed kitchen
and sun room

Ward:
Newbarns
Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Jennifer
Dickinson

Reference:
B21/2020/0395

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
28/08/2020

Location:
3 Tamar Gardens Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA14 3UT

Proposal:
Erection of a rear living area/kitchen and utility
room extension

Ward:
Walney North
Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Barry Jesson

Page 16

Agenda Item 8



   

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Reference:
BPA8/2020/04
12

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
01/09/2020

Location:
Land at Central Drive Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria

Proposal:
The installation of a new 17m monopole supporting
6 no. antennas with proposed equipment cabinets,
and ancillary development thereto. (Part of the 5G
Rollout)

Ward:
Walney North
Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Barry Jesson

Reference:
B21/2020/0449

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
24/08/2020

Location:
67 Black Butts Lane Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA14 3JZ

Proposal:
Conversion and extension to garage, adding a
mono pitched roof with three skylights, to form TV
room with w.c/wash basin and extension to
kitchen. Replacement of existing window and patio
doors with full length window and four bi-folding
patio doors.

Ward:
Walney South
Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Vivienne
Pearson

Reference:
B28/2020/0321

Decision:
APPROVED

Decision Date:
06/08/2020

Location:
Kimberly Clark Park Road Barrow-in-Furness
Cumbria LA14 4QX

Proposal:
Application for approval of details reserved by
Condition No. 3 (Landscaping), Condition No. 4
(drainage details) and Condition No. 5 (Reptile
habitat creation details) of planning permission
2019/0664 (Alterations and extensions to the
existing paper mill buildings to accommodate
replacement machinery, the installation of new
equipment, additional storage and associated work
including an outside loading canopy. This includes
construction works for extensions to existing
buildings which will provide approximately 4,917
sqm of additional industrial floor space to include
pulper buildings, line 7 extension, reel store and
pallet store)

Ward:
Ormsgill Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Jason Hipkiss

Page 17

Agenda Item 8



   

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Reference:
B28/2020/0260

Decision:
APPROVED

Decision Date:
11/08/2020

Location:
Co-operative Retail Services (former Lisdoonie)
Abbey Road, Barrow-in-Furness,Cumbria, LA14
5LF

Proposal:
Approval of details reserved by condition No.3
(Tree Protection Measures), No. 4 (Demolition and
Construction Method Statement), No. 6 (shop front
design) No. 9 (Plant and Machinery Installation),
No.14 (Service and Deliveries Management), No.
16 (off site Highways Works), No.19 (wall and
fence details) for planning application
B20/2019/0567 _  Change of use from hotel
function room to use class A1 to form new retail
store alongside external alterations, associated
parking and service yard.

Ward:
Parkside Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Maureen Smith

Page 18

Agenda Item 8



   

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Reference:
B22/2020/0343

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
28/07/2020

Location:
133 Duke Street, Barrow-in-Furness, Cumbria,
LA14 1XW

Proposal:
Advertisement consent to display 3 non illuminated
facsia signs to front and sides of building.

Ward:
Hindpool Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Jennifer
Dickinson

Reference:
B21/2020/0305

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
10/08/2020

Location:
4 Kirkstall Close, Barrow-in-Furness, Cumbria,
LA13 9UT

Proposal:
Provision of front gable-style dormer window
above garage to create enlarged bedroom space.

Ward:
Newbarns
Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Vivienne
Pearson

Reference:
B12/2020/0197

Decision:
REFUSED

Decision Date:
30/07/2020

Location:
South End Caravan Park South End Barrow-in-
Furness Cumbria LA14 3YQ

Proposal:
Application for the variation of condition no.3
(Caravan holiday season, Easter until 14th
November each year) for previously approved
planning application 1987/0822 (Change of use
from site for 80 touring caravans to site for 50
static and 30 touring caravans) to allow for the
extension of holiday season across the whole
caravan site to 12 months each year

Ward:
Walney South
Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Charles Wilton

Page 19

Agenda Item 8



   

 

 

 

 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

Committee Date : 15/09/2020

Reference
Number:
FV/2020/0378

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
29/06/2020

Location:
5 Monks Croft Avenue Barrow-in-Furness
Cumbria LA14 1EP

Proposal:
Single storey extension

Ward:
Hawcoat Ward

Decision:
Appcond

Decision
Date:
18/08/2020

Reference
Number:
BV/2020/0443

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
23/07/2020

Location:
2 Marton Close Dalton-in-Furness Cumbria
LA15 8XL

Proposal:
Single storey extension.

Ward:
Dalton South
Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
23/07/2020

Reference
Number:
FV/2020/0447

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
24/07/2020

Location:
St Pius X Roman Catholic School Schneider
Road Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria LA14 4AA

Proposal:
Demolition works to existing masonry cavity
wall.

Ward:
Ormsgill Ward

Decision:
Appcond

Decision
Date:
20/08/2020

Reference
Number:
BV/2020/0480

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
06/08/2020

Location:
24 Cragg Street Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA14 5AU

Proposal:
Create door opening from bedroom into the
bathroom, block existing opening between
living room and kitchen and reopen former
doorway including fitting doors to kitchen and
living room.

Ward:
Parkside Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
06/08/2020

Page 20

Agenda Item 8



   

 

 

 

 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

Committee Date : 15/09/2020

Reference
Number:
BV/2020/0448

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
24/07/2020

Location:
24 Cragg Street Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA14 5AU

Proposal:
Relocation of staircase.

Ward:
Parkside Ward

Decision:
Withdrawn

Decision
Date:
24/07/2020

Reference
Number:
BV/2020/0481

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
06/08/2020

Location:
102 Victoria Avenue Barrow-in-Furness
Cumbria LA14 5NQ

Proposal:
Conversion of out house into kitchen.

Ward:
Ormsgill Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
06/08/2020

Reference
Number:
BV/2020/0503

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
18/08/2020

Location:
22 Bath Street Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA14 1NE

Proposal:
Replacement windows and doors.

Ward:
Hindpool Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
18/08/2020

Reference
Number:
BV/2020/0518

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
21/08/2020

Location:
46 Mulberry Way Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA13 0RR

Proposal:
Light weight conservatory roof system.

Ward:
Roosecote
Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
21/08/2020

Page 21

Agenda Item 8



   

 

 

 

 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

Committee Date : 15/09/2020

Reference
Number:
BV/2020/0489

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
14/08/2020

Location:
8 Crompton Drive Dalton-in-Furness Cumbria
LA15 8ND

Proposal:
Single storey extension

Ward:
Dalton South
Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
14/08/2020

Reference
Number:
BV/2020/0495

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
17/08/2020

Location:
9 Himalaya Avenue Barrow-in-Furness
Cumbria LA14 3HE

Proposal:
Create structural opening and install french
doors.

Ward:
Walney South
Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
17/08/2020

Reference
Number:
BV/2020/0499

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
18/08/2020

Location:
91 Gloucester Street Barrow-in-Furness
Cumbria LA13 9RY

Proposal:
Drainage alterations and new internal
doorways to facilitate new wet room.

Ward:
Risedale Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
18/08/2020

Reference
Number:
RA/2020/0507

Application
Type:
Regularisation

Received:
19/08/2020

Location:
68 Langdale Crescent Dalton-in-Furness
Cumbria LA15 8NS

Proposal:
Regularisation of wood burning stove.

Ward:
Dalton South
Ward

Decision:
Regular

Decision
Date:
25/08/2020

Page 22

Agenda Item 8



   

 

 

 

 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

Committee Date : 15/09/2020

Reference
Number:
BV/2020/0522

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
25/08/2020

Location:
28 Severn Road Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA14 3TT

Proposal:
Installation of vertical through floor lift for
disabled adaptation.

Ward:
Walney North
Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
25/08/2020

Reference
Number:
BV/2020/0525

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
28/08/2020

Location:
23 Carisbrooke Crescent Barrow-in-Furness
Cumbria LA13 0HU

Proposal:
Removal of internal wall.

Ward:
Roosecote
Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
28/08/2020

Reference
Number:
BV/2020/0543

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
01/09/2020

Location:
23 Hartington Street Dalton-in-Furness
Cumbria LA15 8HS

Proposal:
Conversion of cellar to two craft rooms.

Ward:
Dalton South
Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
01/09/2020

Reference
Number:
BV/2020/0512

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
19/08/2020

Location:
5 Weymouth Street Barrow-in-Furness
Cumbria LA14 3JF

Proposal:
Kitchen extension.

Ward:
Walney South
Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
19/08/2020

Page 23

Agenda Item 8



   

 

 

 

 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

Committee Date : 15/09/2020

Reference
Number:
BV/2020/0516

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
21/08/2020

Location:
Chapel House Pit Lane Lindal-in-Furness
Cumbria LA12 0LY

Proposal:
Single storey extension for wash room and
store.

Ward:
Dalton North
Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
21/08/2020

Reference
Number:
PI/2020/0515

Application
Type:
Partner
Authority
Inspections

Received:
20/08/2020

Location:
Furness General Hospital Dalton Lane
Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria LA14 4LF

Proposal:
Replacement of windows - Dane Garth.

Ward:
Hawcoat Ward

Decision:
Approved

Decision
Date:
20/08/2020

Reference
Number:
BV/2020/0527

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
28/08/2020

Location:
54 Mulberry Way Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA13 0RR

Proposal:
Removal of rear cavity wall.

Ward:
Roosecote
Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
28/08/2020

Reference
Number:
FV/2020/0356

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
18/06/2020

Location:
60 Victoria Road Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA14 5JU

Proposal:
Single storey side and rear extension and
internal alterations.

Ward:
Parkside Ward

Decision:
Approved

Decision
Date:
18/08/2020

Page 24

Agenda Item 8



   

 

 

 

 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

Committee Date : 15/09/2020

Reference
Number:
FV/2020/0336

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
08/07/2020

Location:
92 Holbeck Park Avenue Barrow-in-Furness
Cumbria LA13 0SB

Proposal:
Rear single storey extension.

Ward:
Roosecote
Ward

Decision:
Appcond

Decision
Date:
04/08/2020

Reference
Number:
FV/2020/0420

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
15/07/2020

Location:
29 Orion Terrace Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA14 3HB

Proposal:
First floor side extension to existing building to
incorporate a bedroom and en suite facility
with alterations to extended hallway.

Ward:
Walney South
Ward

Decision:
Appcond

Decision
Date:
10/08/2020

Reference
Number:
BV/2020/0456

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
28/07/2020

Location:
34 Derbyshire Road Barrow-in-Furness
Cumbria LA14 5NB

Proposal:
Removal of load bearing wall.

Ward:
Ormsgill Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
28/07/2020

Reference
Number:
BV/2020/0461

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
29/07/2020

Location:
9 Bowness Road Dalton-in-Furness Cumbria
LA15 8NJ

Proposal:
Bay window extension to front elevation.

Ward:
Dalton South
Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
29/07/2020

Page 25

Agenda Item 8



   

 

 

 

 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

Committee Date : 15/09/2020

Reference
Number:
BV/2020/0471

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
04/08/2020

Location:
31 Holcroft Hill Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA13 9PH

Proposal:
Single storey extension.

Ward:
Risedale Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
04/08/2020

Reference
Number:
BV/2020/0497

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
18/08/2020

Location:
47 Lorne Road Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA13 9BW

Proposal:
Structural alterations to kitchen.

Ward:
Parkside Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
18/08/2020

Reference
Number:
BV/2020/0322

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
18/08/2020

Location:
1 Infield Crescent Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA13 9JP

Proposal:
Construction of new single storey infill
extension, internal alterations and replace
existing flat roof with pitched roof.

Ward:
Newbarns
Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
18/08/2020

Reference
Number:
BV/2020/0509

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
19/08/2020

Location:
89 Roose Road Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA13 9RJ

Proposal:
Replacement windows and doors, new roof
and thermal upgrade to second floor. Removal
of ground floor wall, replacement of existing
timber beam with new RSJ. Thermal upgrade
to external walls and alteration of services to
provide new bathrooms, new roof and opening
to garage.

Ward:
Risedale Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
19/08/2020

Page 26

Agenda Item 8



   

 

 

 

 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

Committee Date : 15/09/2020

Reference
Number:
BV/2020/0528

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
28/08/2020

Location:
25 Crompton Drive Dalton-in-Furness Cumbria
LA15 8ND

Proposal:
New single storey extension to front elevation.

Ward:
Dalton South
Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
28/08/2020

Reference
Number:
FV/2020/0421

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
15/07/2020

Location:
62 Yarlside Road Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA13 0ES

Proposal:
Loft extension to rear.

Ward:
Roosecote
Ward

Decision:
Appcond

Decision
Date:
20/08/2020

Reference
Number:
BV/2020/0444

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
23/07/2020

Location:
11 Hornbeam Crescent Barrow-in-Furness
Cumbria LA13 0JS

Proposal:
Loft conversion in existing roof space only
(steel lattice support system).
Groundfloor studwall alterations.
Groundfloor relocation of bathroom.

Ward:
Roosecote
Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
23/07/2020

Reference
Number:
BV/2020/0445

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
23/07/2020

Location:
1 Court Five Market Street Dalton-in-Furness
Cumbria LA15 8AS

Proposal:
Part underpinning to front wall, gable and
internal floor, and repairs to external walls.

Ward:
Dalton South
Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
23/07/2020

Page 27

Agenda Item 8



   

 

 

 

 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

Committee Date : 15/09/2020

Reference
Number:
BV/2020/0446

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
23/07/2020

Location:
159 Oxford Street Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA14 5QH

Proposal:
Removal of chimney breast to rear lounge.
Removal of load bearing wall between kitchen,
dining room and hall.

Ward:
Parkside Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
23/07/2020

Reference
Number:
BV/2020/0465

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
30/07/2020

Location:
134 Anson Street Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA14 5TH

Proposal:
New glazing throughout, first floor alterations
to form new bathroom and associated
drainage works.

Ward:
Hindpool Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
30/07/2020

Reference
Number:
BV/2020/0466

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
30/07/2020

Location:
151 Roose Road Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA13 0EE

Proposal:
Extension of kitchen incorporating knock
through into external store.

Ward:
Risedale Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
30/07/2020

Reference
Number:
RA/2020/0468

Application
Type:
Regularisation

Received:
31/07/2020

Location:
11 Dane Avenue Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA14 4JS

Proposal:
Regularisation of wood burning stove.

Ward:
Hawcoat Ward

Decision:
Regular

Decision
Date:
20/08/2020

Page 28

Agenda Item 8



   

 

 

 

 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

Committee Date : 15/09/2020

Reference
Number:
RA/2020/0506

Application
Type:
Regularisation

Received:
19/08/2020

Location:
49 Rampside Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA13 0PY

Proposal:
Construction of balcony in 2010.

Ward:
Roosecote
Ward

Decision:
Regular

Decision
Date:
20/08/2020

Reference
Number:
BV/2020/0452

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
27/07/2020

Location:
2 Crummock Drive Barrow-in-Furness
Cumbria LA14 4LW

Proposal:
New superlite roof to conservatory.

Ward:
Hawcoat Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
27/07/2020

Reference
Number:
FV/2020/0384

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
02/07/2020

Location:
6 Baldwin Street Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA14 4HP

Proposal:
Rear kitchen extension

Ward:
Hawcoat Ward

Decision:
Appcond

Decision
Date:
04/08/2020

Reference
Number:
FV/2020/0403

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
08/07/2020

Location:
12 Robert Street Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA14 1EB

Proposal:
Single storey rear extension.

Ward:
Hindpool Ward

Decision:
Appcond

Decision
Date:
18/08/2020

Page 29

Agenda Item 8



   

 

 

 

 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

Committee Date : 15/09/2020

Reference
Number:
FV/2020/0404

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
08/07/2020

Location:
147 Chapel Street Dalton-in-Furness Cumbria
LA15 8SL

Proposal:
Rear kitchen extension

Ward:
Dalton North
Ward

Decision:
Appcond

Decision
Date:
07/08/2020

Reference
Number:
DM/2020/0002

Application
Type:
Demolition
Notice

Received:
17/08/2020

Location:
 17 Paradise Ireleth Askam-in-Furness

Proposal:
Demolition of dwelling.

Ward:
Dalton North
Ward

Decision:
Notice Issued

Decision
Date:
17/08/2020

Page 30

Agenda Item 8



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES 
 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 

FOR DECISION 
 

15th September 2020 
 

Ladies and Gentlemen,  
 
 The applications within this report have been submitted for determination 
under the Town and Country Planning Acts and associated legislation. 
 
 All applications within this report are “Delegated” to this Committee but can be 
moved “Non-Delegated” by a Member of the Committee under the terms adopted for 
the Scheme of Delegation approved by Council, 16th May, 1994.  Any such motion 
needs to be accepted by a majority of Members of the Committee present (Council, 
8th August, 1995).  All applications left as Delegated will be decided by the 
Committee and will not be subject to confirmation by Council. 
 
 The application plan numbers also refer to files for the purposes of 
background papers. 
 

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 
 
Any member of the public who wishes to ask a question, make representations or 
present a deputation or petition at this meeting should apply to do so by no later than 
12 noon, three working days before the date of the Planning Committee meeting.  
Information on how to make the application can be obtained by viewing the Council’s 
website www.barrowbc.gov.uk or by contacting the Planning Business Support Team 
at consultplanning@barrowbc.gov.uk or by telephone on 01229 876405.. 

 
 

Jason Hipkiss 
 

Development Services Manager 
(Planning and Enforcement) 

 

Page 1 of 59

Page 31

Agenda Item 9

http://www.barrowbc.gov.uk/
mailto:consultplanning@barrowbc.gov.uk


B07/2020/0080 
Planning Committee 

15th September 2020   

  

  
Application Number : B07/2020/0080 Date Valid :26/05/2020 

Address : Car Body Repair Workshop, 
Schneider Road, Barrow-in-Furness 
Cumbria LA14 5DN 

Case Officer : Charles Wilton 

Proposal : Application for Outline Planning Permission with all matters reserved for 
existing workshops to be replaced by ten domestic dwellings. 

Ward : Ormsgill Ward Parish : N/A 

Applicant : Mr N Griffin   Agent : Furness Building Plans  

Statutory Date : 25/08/2020 Recommendation : Refusal 

Barrow Planning Hub   
  

Relevant Policies and Guidance 

Full details of the policies listed below are included in the appendix 
 
Local Plan Policies 

1. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy C2 - Development and the Coast 
2. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy C3a - Water management 
3. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy DS1 - Council’s commitment to 

sustainable development 
4. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy DS2 - Sustainable Development 

Criteria 
5. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy DS5 - Design 
6. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy EC4 - Loss of Employment Land and 

Allocated Employment Sites 
7. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy GI1 - Green Infrastructure 
8. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy H14 - Affordable Housing  
9. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy H9 - Housing Density 
10. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy N3 - Protecting biodiversity and 

geodiversity 

 

 

 

Page 2 of 59

Page 32

Agenda Item 9

https://webapps.barrowbc.gov.uk/webapps/f?p=BARROWPLANNINGHUB:APPLICATIONSEARCH::::RIR,CIR:IR_REFERENCE_NUMBER:B07/2020/0080


 

Summary of Main Issues 

Benefits of redevelopment outweigh conflict with policy EC4 however the site is unable to 
accommodate the number of dwellings applied for while meeting requirements for an 
appropriate standard of access road, good design generally, or green infra structure and bio 
diversity requirements. Further assessment re surface water drainage also required 

Response to Publicity and Consultations 

Development advertised on site  

Neighbours Consulted 

Street Name Properties 
Laburnum 
Crescent 2, 

Schneider 
Road 

22, 24, 26, 28, 30, 32, Abbey Marble and Granite, Carefree Travel, J and P 
Welding, Rimmers Body Repairs, Star Hand Car Wash, Tally Ho, 

   

Responses Support Object Neutral 

1 0 1 0 

   

Organisations Consulted 

Consultee 
Barrow Borough Council (Building Control) 
Barrow Borough Council (Estates) 
Barrow Borough Council (Planning Policy) 
Barrow Borough Council (Public Protection Services Contamination) 
Barrow Borough Council (Public Protection Services) 
Barrow Borough Council (TSU - Chris Jones) 
Cumbria County Council (Emergency Planning) 
Cumbria County Council (Highways) 
Cumbria County Council (LLFA) 
Electricity North West Ltd 
Environment Agency (Contamination, Flood and Pollution) 
Office for Nuclear Regulation (Nuclear) 
United Utilities (Asset Protection) 
   
 
 
 

Page 3 of 59

Page 33

Agenda Item 9



List of Organisation Responses 

Barrow Borough Council (Building Control) 27/05/2020  

“Building regulation approval required for the proposals”. 

Barrow Borough Council (Public Protection Services Contamination) 03/08/2020  

“Thank you for the above consultation. Please accept my apologies for my late response. 

I can confirm that i have read the application and the document entitled Preliminary Risk 
Assessment prepared by bEk Enviro. I agree with the conclusions of the report that a 
further intrusive investigation is warranted given the sites previous industrial usage. 

I would therefore recommend the following conditions based on the information already 
known: 

1. The Preliminary Investigation has identified potential unacceptable risks, a Field 
Investigation and Risk Assessment, conducted in accordance with established 
procedures (BS10175 (2011+A2:2017) Code of Practice for the Investigation of 
Potentially Contaminated Sites and Model Procedures for the Management of Land 
Contamination (CLR11)), shall be undertaken to determine the presence and degree 
of contamination and must be undertaken by a suitably qualified contaminated land 
practitioner. The results of the Field Investigation and Risk Assessment shall be 
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority before any development 
begins. 

2. Where contamination is found which poses unacceptable risks, no development shall 
take place until a detailed Remediation Scheme has been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme must include an 
appraisal of remedial options and proposal of the preferred option(s), all works to be 
undertaken, proposed remediation objectives, remediation criteria and a verification 
plan. The scheme must ensure that the site will not qualify as contaminated land 
under Part 2A of the Environmental Protection Act 1990 in relation to the intended 
use. 

3. The approved Remediation Scheme shall be implemented and a Verification 
Report submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, prior to 
occupation of the development. 

4. In the event that contamination is found at any time when carrying out the approved 
development, that was not previously identified, it must be reported immediately to 
the Local Planning Authority. Development on the part of the site affected must be 
halted and Field Investigations shall be carried out. Where required by the Local 
Planning Authority, remediation and verification schemes shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. These shall be implemented 
prior to occupation of the development. 

Page 4 of 59

Page 34

Agenda Item 9



 

5. No soil material is to be imported to the site until it has been tested for contamination 
and assessed for its suitability for the proposed development. A suitable 
methodology for testing this material should be submitted to and approved by the 
Local Planning Authority prior to the soils being imported onto site. The methodology 
should include the sampling frequency, testing schedules, criteria against which the 
analytical results will be assessed (as determined by the risk assessment) and 
source material information. The analysis shall then be carried out as per the agreed 
methodology with verification of its completion submitted to and approved in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority”. 

Cumbria County Council (Emergency Planning) 27/05/2020  

"This application does not fall within the Detailed Emergency Planning Area of BAE 
Systems, the Public Information Zone of Spirit Energy or the Potential Inundation Area for 
Harlock and Poaka Beck Reservoirs, so this office has no comments to make on the 
application." 

Cumbria County Council (Highways & LLFA) 03/07/2020 

"Thank you for your consultation on 29 May 2020 regarding the above Planning Application. 
Cumbria County Council as the Highways Authority and the Lead Local Flood Authority 
(LLFA) has reviewed the above planning reference and our findings are detailed below. 

Highways response: 

There are concerns in regards to the proposed frontage parking along the public footpath. 
Schneider road is a busy two lane carriageway and such an increase in parking with 
reversing onto main road would not be acceptable. 

The access from the U6132 Highway maintainable at public expense 30mph speed road to 
the private site. The required visibility splay for a 30mph speed road should be 60m at the 
minimum in both direction back by 2.4m and at a height of 1.05m above the carriageway. 
Drivers need to be able to see obstructions 2m high down to a point 600mm above the 
carriageway. The latter dimension is used to ensure small children can be seen. Within the 
visibility splay or sight line envelope there should be no obstructions to vision such as walls 
or vegetation etc within the vertical profile. If any obstructions need to be reduced or 
removed within the visibility splay, it should be within the applicants ownership. 

A Shared Surface Road serving maximum 20 dwellings, should have a nominal 
carriageway width of 4.8 m. Refuse vehicles will require an area for refuse / recycling  bin 
collection there should be a designated area for collection, this should not be on the 
highway (general waste and green waste collections).  Also access for emergency services. 

Depending on the number of bedrooms, a plan should show there would be safe 
opportunity for parking adjacent to the proposed site, we would expect the following number 
of parking spaces to be provided for the proposed dwelling. 

Page 5 of 59

Page 35

Agenda Item 9



 

· 1 bedroom dwelling –  1 spaces 

· 2, 3 & 4 bedroom dwelling – 2 spaces 

· 5 + bedroom dwelling – 3 spaces 

Published on our website is our current Cumbria Development Design Guide which the 
applicant may find useful to look at also split into appendices Appendix 4 – Highway Design 
Guidance – Residential. 

NOTE: Any works within the Highway must be agreed with the Highway Authority. 

Any works within or near the Highway must be authorised by Cumbria County Council and 
no works shall be permitted or carried out on any part of the Highway including Verges, until 
you are in receipt of an appropriate permit (I.E Section 184 Agreement) allowing such 
works.  Enquires should be made to Cumbria County Councils Street Work’s team – 
streetworks.south@cumbria.gov.uk 

Fees: https://www.cumbria.gov.uk/roads-transport/fees.asp 

Please be advised that the Highway outside and or adjacent to the proposal must be 
kept clear and accessible at all times. 

LLFA response: 

The LLFA surface water maps show that the site is very close to an area of flooding and 
indicates that a 1% (1 in 100) chance of flooding occurring close to the site each year and 
the Environment Agency (EA) surface water maps do not indicate that the site is in an area 
of risk. 

The drainage would need to be identified for proposals for foul and surface water, mains 
connected or to soakaway. The surface water drainage should not be greater than the 
already existing. If installing a soakaway we would advise not to be positioned in close 
proximity to the highway – which should be at least 5m away from the highway and 
property. 

The applicant may also find useful from our website sustainable drainage systems 
(SuDs) Cumbria Development Design Guide Appendix 6 – SuDs components which 
provides examples of various types of SuDs components that are considered appropriate to 
a sustainable drainage system. 

NOTE: The development site is within 20m of an ordinary water course (Lower 
Ormsgill Reservoir), please see below: 

No development shall commence until Land Drainage / Ordinary Watercourse consent has 
been granted for the proposed changes to the watercourse flowing close to the site. 
Contact LFRM Consent LFRM.consent@cumbria.gov.uk for information and guidance. 

Page 6 of 59

Page 36

Agenda Item 9

mailto:streetworks.south@cumbria.gov.uk
https://www.cumbria.gov.uk/roads-transport/fees.asp
mailto:consent@cumbria.gov.uk


 

Reason: To protect and enhance the natural environment surrounding the watercourse 

Conclusion: 

I can confirm that the Highway Authority and Lead Local Flood Authority in principle has no 
objections to the proposal, subject to the following recommended conditions being included 
in any Notice of Consent which may be issued: 

The carriageway, footways, footpaths, cycleways etc. shall be designed, constructed, 
drained and lit to a standard suitable for adoption and in this respect further details, 
including longitudinal/cross sections, shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority for 
approval before work commences on site.  No work shall be commenced until a full 
specification has been approved. These details shall be in accordance with the standards 
laid down in the current Cumbria Design Guide. Any works so approved shall be 
constructed before the development is complete. 

Reason: To ensure a minimum standard of construction in the interests of highway safety. 

To support Local Transport Plan Policies: LD5, LD7, LD8 

The development shall not commence until visibility splays providing clear visibility of 60 
metres measured 2.4 metres down the centre of the access road and the nearside channel 
line of the carriageway edge have been provided at the junction of the access road with the 
county highway. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General 
Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any Order revoking and re-enacting that 
Order) relating to permitted development, no structure, vehicle or object of any kind shall be 
erected, parked or placed and no trees, bushes or other plants shall be planted or be 
permitted to grown within the visibility splay which obstruct the visibility splays. The visibility 
splays shall be constructed before general development of the site commences so that 
construction traffic is safeguarded. 

Reason: In the interests of highway safety. 

To support Local Transport Plan Policies: LD7, LD8 

Full details of the surface water drainage system shall be submitted to the Local Planning 
Authority for approval prior to development being commenced. Any approved works shall 
be implemented prior to the development being completed and shall be maintained 
operational thereafter. 

Reason: In the interests of highway safety and environmental management. 

To support Local Transport Plan Policies: LD7, LD8 

 

 

Page 7 of 59

Page 37

Agenda Item 9



 

Details of all measures to be taken by the applicant/developer to prevent surface water 

discharging onto or off the highway shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority for 
approval prior to development being commenced. Any approved works shall be 
implemented prior to the development being completed and shall be maintained operational 
thereafter. 

Reason: In the interests of highway safety and environmental management. 

To support Local Transport Plan Policies: LD7, LD8 

Details showing the provision within the site for the parking and turning of vehicles and for 
vehicles to enter and leave the site in a forward direction shall be submitted to the Local 
Planning Authority for approval.  The development shall not be brought into use until any 
such details have been approved and the parking and manoeuvring facilities constructed. 
The approved parking and manoeuvring areas shall be kept available for those purposes at 
all times and shall not be used for any other purpose. 

Reason: To ensure that provision is made for vehicle turning within the site and in the 
interests of highway safety. 

To support Local Transport Plan Policies: LD7, LD8 

The whole of the access area bounded by the carriageway edge, entrance gates and the 
splays shall be constructed and drained to the specification of the Local Planning Authority 
in consultation with the Highway Authority. 

Reason: In the interests of road safety. 

To support Local Transport Plan Policies: LD5, LD7, LD8 

Prior to the commencement of any development, a surface water drainage scheme, based 
on the hierarchy of drainage options in the National Planning Practice Guidance with 
evidence of an assessment of the site conditions (inclusive of how the scheme shall be 
managed after completion) shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. 

The surface water drainage scheme must be in accordance with the Non-Statutory 
Technical Standards for Sustainable Drainage Systems (March 2015) or any subsequent 
replacement national standards and unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority, no surface water shall discharge to the public sewerage system either 
directly or indirectly. 

The development shall be completed, maintained and managed in accordance with the 
approved details. 

 

Page 8 of 59

Page 38

Agenda Item 9



 

Reason: To promote sustainable development, secure proper drainage and to manage the 
risk of flooding and pollution. This condition is imposed in light of policies within the NPPF 
and NPPG." 

Environment Agency (Contamination, Flood and Pollution) 17/06/2020  
 
“The previous use of the proposed development site as a garage with infilled land presents 
a risk of contamination that could be mobilised during construction to pollute controlled 
waters. Controlled waters are particularly sensitive in this location because the proposed 
development site is located upon a principal aquifer and close to Ormsgill reservoir. 
The application’s BEK -20696-1 report demonstrates that it will be possible to manage the 
risks posed to controlled waters by this development. Further detailed information will 
however be required before built development is undertaken. We believe that it would place 
an unreasonable burden on the developer to ask for more detailed information prior to the 
granting of planning permission but respect that this is a decision for the local planning 
authority. 
 
In light of the above, the proposed development will be acceptable if a planning condition is 
included requiring the submission of a remediation strategy. This should be carried out by a 
competent person in line with paragraph 178 of the National Planning Policy Framework. 
Without this condition we would object to the proposal in line with paragraph 170 of the 
National Planning Policy Framework because it cannot be guaranteed that the development 
will not be put at unacceptable risk from, or be adversely affected by, unacceptable levels of 
water pollution. 
  
Condition 
Prior to each phase of development approved by this planning permission no development 
shall commence until a remediation strategy to deal with the risks associated with 
contamination of the site in respect of the development hereby permitted, has been 
submitted to, and approved in writing by, the local planning authority. This strategy will 
include the following components: 
  

1. A site investigation scheme, based on the desk study to provide information for a 
detailed assessment of the risk to all receptors that may be affected, including those 
off-site. 

2. The results of the site investigation and the detailed risk assessment referred to in 
(1) and, based on these, an options appraisal and remediation strategy giving full 
details of the remediation measures required and how they are to be undertaken. 

3. A verification plan providing details of the data that will be collected in order to 
demonstrate that the works set out in the remediation strategy in (2) are complete 
and identifying any requirements for longer-term monitoring of pollutant linkages, 
maintenance and arrangements for contingency action. 

Any changes to these components require the written consent of the local planning 
authority. The scheme shall be implemented as approved. 

Page 9 of 59

Page 39

Agenda Item 9



 

 
Reason 
To ensure that the development does not contribute to, and is not put at unacceptable risk 
from or adversely affected by, unacceptable levels of water pollution in line with paragraph 
170 of the National Planning Policy Framework." 

Office for Nuclear Regulation (Nuclear) 03/06/2020  

“This application falls outside of any GB nuclear consultation zone, therefore ONR has no 
comment to make." 

United Utilities 25/06/2020  

"With regards to the above development proposal, United Utilities Water Limited (‘United 
Utilities’) wishes to provide the following comments. 

ADVISORY NOTE: 

The submitted Drainage Layout and application form suggests that surface water will be 
disposed of via a surface water sewer. According to our records this is not an adopted 
United Utilities’ sewer and therefore permission from a  third party will  be required 
prior to  connection. Should the applicant not currently have permission then a revised 
drainage strategy may be required or confirmation of acceptance by the third party 
provided. 

Groundwater Source Protection Zone 

The site overlies the sandstone rock, in a Groundwater Source Protection Zone (SPZ) 1. 
This forms an aquifer, abstracted at depth by United Utilities for public drinking water supply 
at nearby Schneider Road boreholes. 

We suspect there is potential for land or groundwater contamination to be present on-site, 
therefore strongly recommend the Environment Agency is consulted on this development, 
with regards to the risks to ‘controlled waters’, groundwater and surface waters. 

We also recommend the following planning condition be attached to any Deicison Notice 
granted: 

Condition 1 – Groundwater Source Protection 

Prior to the commencement of development, a Groundwater Investigation Report 
should be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. This 
should include (but not be exclusive of) the following: 

 

 

Page 10 of 59

Page 40

Agenda Item 9



 

A Risk Assessment detailing how the proposed drainage scheme will ensure no 
pollution of groundwater, both during construction and for the lifetime of the 
development. Details should include the protective measures that will be required for 
the use and/or storage of fuels, oils and chemicals, to remove the risk of causing 
pollution during construction. It should also identify any mitigation measures that 
must be implemented throughout occupation of the dwellings. 

A Water Supply Pipe Risk Assessment (WSP RA) to ensure the appropriate water 
pipes will be used for installation and connection to the proposed properties. 

Should a contaminated land risk assessment determine that the  development has 
the potential to impact the aquifer and the nearby potable groundwater abstractions 
at Schneider Road United Utilities must be notified. The impact on groundwater 
within the site from the off-site tanks at the southern boundary of the site and 
underground transport of contaminated groundwater, as a result of the previous land 
use on site (Gas Works), should investigated. 

Reason: To protect the wider drinking water supplies and public health. 

Drainage 

In  accordance  with  the  National  Planning  Policy  Framework  (NPPF)  and  the  National 
Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG), the site should be drained on a separate system with 
foul water draining to the public sewer and surface water draining in the most sustainable 
way. 

We request the following drainage conditions are attached to any subsequent approval to 
reflect the above approach: 

Condition 2 – Surface water 

No development shall commence until a surface water drainage scheme has been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The drainage 
scheme must include: 

(i)   An investigation of the hierarchy of drainage options in the National Planning 
Practice Guidance (or any subsequent amendment thereof). This investigation shall 
include evidence of an assessment of ground conditions and the potential for 
infiltration of surface water; 

(ii)  A restricted rate of discharge of surface water agreed with the local planning 
authority (if it is agreed that infiltration is discounted by the investigations); and 

(iii) A timetable for its implementation. 

 

Page 11 of 59

Page 41

Agenda Item 9



 

The approved scheme shall also be in accordance with the Non-Statutory Technical 
Standards for 

Sustainable Drainage Systems (March 2015) or any subsequent replacement national 
standards. 

The development hereby permitted shall be carried out only in accordance with the 
approved drainage scheme. 

Reason: To promote sustainable development, secure proper drainage and to 
manage the risk of flooding and pollution. 

Condition 3 – Foul water 

Foul and surface water shall be drained on separate systems. 

Reason: To secure proper drainage and to manage the risk of flooding and pollution. 

The applicant can discuss any of the above with Developer Engineer, by email at 
wastewaterdeveloperservices@uuplc.co.uk. 

 Please note, United Utilities are not responsible for advising on rates of discharge to the 
local watercourse system.  This is a matter for discussion with the Lead Local Flood 
Authority and / or the Environment Agency (if the watercourse is classified as main river). 

If the applicant intends to offer wastewater assets forward for adoption by United Utilities, 
the proposed detailed design will be subject to a technical appraisal by an Adoptions 
Engineer as we need to be sure that the proposal meets the requirements of Sewers for 
Adoption and United Utilities’ Asset Standards. The detailed layout should be prepared with 
consideration of what is necessary to secure a development to an adoptable standard. This 
is important as drainage design can be a key determining factor of site levels and layout. 
The proposed design should give consideration to long term operability and give United 
Utilities a cost effective proposal for the life of the assets. Therefore, should this application 
be approved and the applicant wishes to progress a Section 104 agreement, we strongly 
recommend that no construction commences until the detailed drainage design, submitted 
as part of the Section 104 agreement, has been assessed and accepted in writing by 
United Utilities. Any works carried out prior to the technical assessment being approved is 
done entirely at the developers own risk and could be subject to change. 

 

 

 

 

Page 12 of 59

Page 42

Agenda Item 9

mailto:wastewaterdeveloperservices@uuplc.co.uk


 

Management and Maintenance of Sustainable Drainage Systems 

Without effective management and maintenance, sustainable drainage systems can fail or 
become ineffective. As a provider of wastewater services, we believe we have a duty to 
advise the Local Planning Authority of this potential risk to ensure the longevity of the 
surface water drainage system and the service it provides to people.  We also wish to 
minimise the risk of a sustainable drainage system having a detrimental impact on the 
public sewer network should the two systems interact. We therefore recommend the Local 
Planning Authority include a condition in their Decision Notice regarding a  management 
and  maintenance regime  for  any  sustainable drainage system  that  is included as part of 
the proposed development. 

For schemes of 10 or more units and other major development, we recommend the Local 
Planning Authority consults with the Lead Local Flood Authority regarding the exact wording 
of any condition. You may find the below a useful example: 

Prior to occupation of the development a sustainable drainage management and 
maintenance plan for the lifetime of the development shall be submitted to the local 
planning authority and agreed in writing. The sustainable drainage management and 
maintenance plan shall include as a minimum: 

a.   Arrangements  for  adoption  by  an  appropriate  public  body  or  statutory  undertaker, 
or, 

management and maintenance by a resident’s management company; and 

b.   Arrangements for inspection and ongoing maintenance of all elements of the 
sustainable drainage system to secure the operation of the surface water drainage scheme 
throughout its lifetime. 

The development shall subsequently be completed, maintained and managed in 
accordance with the approved plan. 

Reason: To ensure that management arrangements are in place for the sustainable 
drainage system 

In order to manage the risk of flooding and pollution during the lifetime of the development. 

Please note United Utilities cannot provide comment on the management and maintenance 
of an asset that is owned by a third party management and maintenance company.   We 
would not be involved in the discharge of the management and maintenance condition in 
these circumstances. 

 

 

Page 13 of 59

Page 43

Agenda Item 9



 

Water Supply 

If the applicant intends to obtain a water supply from United Utilities for the proposed 
development, we strongly recommend they engage with us at the earliest opportunity. If 
reinforcement of the water network is required to meet the demand, this could be a 
significant project and the design and construction period should be accounted for. 

To discuss a potential water supply or any of the water comments detailed above, the 
applicant can contact the team at DeveloperServicesWater@uuplc.co.uk. 

Please  note,  all  internal  pipework  must  comply  with  current  Water  Supply  (water 
fittings) Regulations 1999. 

United Utilities’ Property, Assets and Infrastructure 

A water main crosses the site. As we need unrestricted access for operating and 
maintaining it, we will not permit development over or in close proximity to the main. 
We require an access strip as detailed in our ‘Standard Conditions for Works 
Adjacent to Pipelines’, a copy of which is enclosed. 

The applicant must comply with our ‘Standard Conditions’ document. This should be taken 
into account in the final site layout, or a diversion may be necessary. Unless there is 
specific provision within the title of the property or an associated easement, any necessary 
disconnection or diversion required as a result of any development will be at the applicant's 
expense. If considering a water mains diversion, the applicant should contact United 
Utilities at their earliest opportunity as they may find that the cost of mains diversion is 
prohibitive in the context of their development scheme. 

The Water Industry Act 1991 affords United Utilities specific rights in relation to the 
maintenance, repair, access and protection of our water infrastructure; 

Sections 158 & 159, outlines the right to inspect, maintain, adjust, repair or alter our mains. 

This includes carrying out any works incidental to any of those purposes. Service pipes are 
not our property and we have no record of them. 

Under Section 174 of the Act it is an offence to intentionally or negligently interfere with any 
resource main or water main that causes damage to or has an effect on its use or 
operation. 

It is in accordance with this statutory provision that we provide standard conditions to assist 
developers when working in close proximity to our water mains. 

 

 

Page 14 of 59

Page 44

Agenda Item 9

mailto:DeveloperServicesWater@uuplc.co.uk


 

Both during and post construction, there should be no additional load bearing capacity on 
the main without prior agreement from United Utilities. This would include earth movement 
and the transport and position of construction equipment and vehicles. 

A 450mm diameter public sewer crosses this site and we may not permit building 
over it. We will require an access strip width of 10 metres, 5 metres either side of the 
centre line of the sewer for maintenance or replacement. Therefore a modification of the 
site layout may be necessary. All costs associated with sewer diversions must be borne by 
the applicant. Deep rooted shrubs and trees should not be planted in the vicinity of the 
public sewer and overflow systems. 

Where United Utilities’ assets exist, the level of cover to the water mains and public sewers 
must not be compromised either during or after construction. 

For advice regarding protection of United Utilities assets, the applicant should contact the 
teams as follows: 

Water assets – DeveloperServicesWater@uuplc.co.uk 

Wastewater assets – WastewaterDeveloperServices@uuplc.co.uk 

It  is  the  applicant's responsibility  to  investigate  the  possibility  of  any  United 
Utilities’  assets potentially impacted by their proposals and to demonstrate the exact 
relationship between any United Utilities' assets and the proposed development. 

A number of providers offer a paid for mapping service including United Utilities. To find out 
how to purchase a sewer and water plan from United Utilities, please visit the Property 
Searches website; https://www.unitedutilities.com/property-searches/ 

You can also view the plans for free. To make an appointment to view our sewer records at 
your local authority please contact them direct, alternatively if you wish to view the water 
and the sewer records at our Lingley Mere offices based in Warrington please ring 0370 
751 0101 to book an appointment. 

Due to the public sewer transfer in 2011, not all sewers are currently shown on the statutory 
sewer records and we do not always show private pipes on our plans. If a sewer is 
discovered during construction; please contact a Building Control Body to discuss the 
matter further. 

Should this planning application be approved the applicant should contact United Utilities 
regarding a potential water supply or connection to public sewers. Additional information is 
available on our website  http://www.unitedutilities.com/builders-developers.aspx" 

(Document  attached - Standard Conditions for works adjacent to pipelines (see original) 

  

Page 15 of 59

Page 45

Agenda Item 9

mailto:DeveloperServicesWater@uuplc.co.uk
mailto:WastewaterDeveloperServices@uuplc.co.uk
https://www.unitedutilities.com/property-searches/
tel:0370%20751%200101
tel:0370%20751%200101
http://www.unitedutilities.com/builders-developers.aspx


 

  
Officers Report 

1.Site and Locality 

1.1 The site is occupied by car body repair workshops and is located adjacent to the Tally 
Ho PH. The site forms part of a strip of land running alongside Ormsgill Reservoir which has 
historically been given over to commercial/non domestic uses. |More recently however the 
character of this area has started to change with the re development of the former 
Cemetery Cottages Working Men's Club into a 12 dwelling development 

2. Proposal Details 

2.1 Application for Outline Planning Permission with all matters reserved for existing 
workshops to be replaced by ten domestic dwellings. 

3. Relevant History 
 
3.1 1975/0946 Reza' Garage, Schneider Road, Barrow-in-Furness Car spray workshop 
Approved 02/12/1975 
 
3.2 1984/0008 Reza Garage, Schneider Road, Barrow-in-Furness Rear extension to vehicle 
body repair workshop Appcond 28/02/1984 

4. Officer Assessment 

Key Planning Issues 

4.1 The application has been submitted in outline form with all matters reserved. The 
purpose of the application is therefore to establish the principle of developing the site for 10 
dwellings. Were permission to be granted a further application would be required for details 
such as the road layout, house design etc. 

Principle of residential development 

4.2 The site represents a brown field site within the urban area. Policy H7 lists a variety of 
criteria which developments should meet. Most relate to the detail, but the scheme would 
appear to meet the following which apply to an outline application 

a) site located within built up area  
 
e) access would not impact unduly on the highway network (no objection from CCC 
highways) 
 
f) site accessible by walking, cycling, public transport (close to schools/other facilities, on a 
bus route)   

 

Page 16 of 59

Page 46

Agenda Item 9



 
m) no unacceptable impacts on the amenities of existing residents (no privacy/sun-lighting 
impacts due to width of Schneider Rd) 

4.3 The criterion which requires additional consideration:  

d) An acceptable standard of amenity can be provided for future residents 

4.4 The character of the area as a whole is residential. The more immediate character is 
commercial however with the public house on one side of the application site and a 
large yard area on the other given over to vehicle related uses (the operating base of a 
travel firm). While these uses are likely to have some impact on the amenities of future 
occupiers the activities are likely to fall within acceptable levels given that there is already 
housing in close proximity. 

4.5 A further policy which is relevant to this matter is EC4 which seeks to protect 
employment sites. It requires industrial sites to be advertised for sale for a minimum of 12 
months to establish the level of demand. Approval of the application would conflict with this 
policy as no evidence has been submitted to show that such marketing has been carried 
out. Indeed the sole objection is from a tenant of part of the building. However approval 
would accord with other policies which seek to promote regeneration, and improvements in 
amenity for existing residents. Such regeneration benefits are taking shape close by at the 
former Cemetery Cottages site. A consideration as to whether the existing use should be 
protected depends on whether it is seen as an appropriate use in this location. 

4.6 There are a number of other constraints to consider one of which relates to drainage. 
The hierarchy of surface water disposal (policy C3a). identifies ground infiltration as the first 
option. This is followed in turn by disposal to a water body, to a surface water  sewer and 
finally to a combined sewer. No percolation tests have been carried out but taking account 
of the likely contamination (refer public protection comments above) and UU/EA comments 
re sensitivity of the site, ground infiltration, even if practically possible is unlikely to be 
acceptable 

4.7 The drainage information submitted with the application indicated SW disposal to a SW 
sewer in Schneider Road. However as commented by UU (refer consultation response 
above) this is not an adopted sewer. It is a highway drain belonging to CCC and there is no 
right of connection. CCC refused connection re the Cemetery Cottages development. That 
development connects to Ormsgill Reservoir but agreement had to be reached with the 
Borough Council as landowner and various measures put in place first. 

4.8 In conclusion the measures advanced for SW disposal are based on there being a SW 
sewer in Schneider Rd which the development can connect to. This does not appear to be 
the case. Approval could potentially lead to a connection to a combined sewer which is the 
least favourable outcome and raises issues re sustainability. Further work should be carried 
out by the applicant to establish the drainage principles prior to the principle of residential 
development being agreed. 

4.9 Issues regarding the further investigation re site contamination can be addressed via 
conditions as advised by both Public Protection and the EA. 

Page 17 of 59

Page 47

Agenda Item 9



 

Principle of erecting 10 dwellings 

4.10 The issue raised is whether the site can reasonably accommodate 10 dwellings while 
meeting policy requirements regarding adequate access, amenity/good design, green infra 
structure and bio diversity 

Access 

4.11 Access is a reserved matter, but an illustrative layout has been submitted. This shows 
four houses located at the front of the site and a terrace of six running along the back of the 
site. The 4 would be accessed directly off Schneider Road with the six served via a new 
estate road. This is indicated to be a one way system. However the Cumbria Design Guide 
discourages one way systems on new residential developments. CCC as Highway 
Authority, while raising no objections to the grant of planning permission, do state that a 
shared surface road will be required to serve the development. This standard, two way 
traffic highway has not been allowed for in determining the number of units. It is unlikely that 
the number of units can be delivered with a highway which accords with the Cumbria 
Design Guide/CCC consultation response. 

Design. 

4.12 Policy requires developments to be of high quality which support the creation of 
attractive vibrant places. However the terrace of six appears very cramped with the 
appearance of the site dominated by parked vehicles as virtually all land at the front of the 
houses would need to be given over to roads or parking. There has been no assessment 
submitted by the applicant as to how the site would respond to its context. Curtilages are 
very small with some rear gardens indicated at 3.8m in length. Approval would conflict with 
policies including H7 (c) 'buildings are well designed in terms of siting, grouping, scale' 

Green Infrastructure 

4.13 The Council's policy requires developments to provide for green infrastructure. The 
application includes no such information. 

Bio diversity 

4.14 The Council's bio diversity policies require applications to provide a net gain in bio 
diversity. Applications for major development (i.e. 10 or more units) need to demonstrate a 
net gain using a DEFRA based metric (Bio Diversity and Development SPD). The scheme 
does not include any such bio diversity information. 

Housing Density 

4.15 Policy H9 places density in the hands of the developer however developments must 
meet the design principles set out in the Local Plan. The scheme as proposed would not 
meet these design principles 

Page 18 of 59

Page 48

Agenda Item 9



 

Affordable Housing 

4.16 No information has been submitted in relation to policy H14 which requires a minimum 
10% of units to be affordable on sites of 10 or more dwellings.  Nor has there been any 
justification for not including Affordable units.        

5. Conclusions 

5.1. The site is constrained in terms of the available options for surface water disposal. 
Further assessment is required to deliver a means of disposal other than a discharge to a 
combined sewer which is the lowest in the hierarchy (Policy C3a) and which would not meet 
the definition of sustainable development without adequate investigations as to 
alternatives(Policy DS2) 

5.2. The site is not considered to be able to deliver the magnitude of development applied for 
whilst still delivering high quality development as required by policies DS2, DS5,and H7(c) 
nor has it been shown able to comply with green infra structure or bio diversity requirements 
(policies GI1/ Green Infra Structure Strategy (draft) and N3/ Biodiversity and Development 
SPD) or the requirements of the Cumbria Development Design Guide in terms of delivering 
an appropriate standard of access road. 

5.3. The illustrative layout plan and proposed density indicates that the development would 
be dominated by highways, and by parked vehicles, which is considered to be contrary to 
Policies DS2, DS5 and H7(c) which seek to ensure high quality developments that 
contribute to an enhancement of residential character. 

5.4. Approval would conflict with Policy H14 as no affordable homes element is included as 
part of the application nor any justification given why such an element should not be 
included. 

 

6. Recommendation 
 
I recommend that Planning Permission be Refused for the following reasons: 

Reasons for Refusal 

1. The site is constrained in terms of the available options for surface water disposal. 
Further assessment is required to deliver a means of disposal other than a discharge to a 
combined sewer which is the lowest in the hierarchy (Policy C3a) and which would not meet 
the definition of sustainable development without adequate investigations as to 
alternatives(Policy DS2) 

 

 

Page 19 of 59

Page 49

Agenda Item 9



 

 

2. The site is not considered to be able to deliver the magnitude of development applied for 
whilst still delivering high quality development as required by policies DS2, DS5,and H7(c)  
nor has it been shown able to comply with green infra structure or bio diversity requirements 
(policies GI1/ Green Infra Structure Strategy (draft) and N3/ Biodiversity and Development 
SPD) or the requirements of the Cumbria Development Design Guide in terms of delivering 
an appropriate standard of access road. 

3. The illustrative layout plan and proposed density indicates that the development would 
be dominated by highways, and by parked vehicles, which is considered to be contrary to 
Policies DS2, DS5 and H7(c) which seek to ensure high quality developments that 
contribute to an enhancement of residential character. 

4. Approval would conflict with Policy H14 as no affordable homes element is included as 
part of the application nor any justification given why such an element should not be 
included. 

 
 

Page 20 of 59

Page 50

Agenda Item 9



Furness Building Plans

Client

Drawn by 
Furness Building Plans

Tel. (01229) 869830

Drawing No.

Date

SP1

Haveriggholme Farm, Torver 16/01/20

Block Plan

Scale  1:500 @ A3

3
5
.0

5

11.30

Ground Area Calculation

Area 1
43.4 x 35.05  =  1521.2 sq.m

Area 2
35.05 x 11.3    =  198 sq.m
         2

Total Area
1617 + 198  =  1719.2 sq.m

      0.1719 Hectares

43.40

P
ub

lic fo
o
tp

a
th

2020/0080

Page 21 of 59

P
age 51

A
genda Item

 9



Furness Building Plans

Client

Drawn by 
Furness Building Plans

Tel. (01229) 869830

Drawing No.

Date

P1

Haveriggholme Farm, Torver 16/01/20

P
u
b
lic fo

o
tp

ath

Scale  1:200 @ A3

S
ch

n
e
id

e
r ro

a
d

5
.5

0

Internal floor area
94 sq.m

3.80

Terrace:-

3 storey, 2 bedroom
mews style properties.
Grey areas suggest
potential habitable rooms
and garage (showing across
two properties).

Suggested properties similar
in style to those of Elm Mews,
Elm Road, Barrow. Semi-detached houses:-

2 storey, 3 Bedrooms.

Properties to mirror those proposed
on Cemetry Cottages site, 100m North
of this proposal.

Parking bays (4.5 x 2.6m)

indicated by dashed lines

One way system

One way system

Internal habitable floor areas:-

Ground floor  -  11.25sq.m
(excluding stairs & corridor
to bedrfoom)
1st floor  -  33.3sq.m
2cnd floor  -  33.3sq.m

Total habitable floor area per dwelling:-

                                         77.85sq.m

10.00

5.00

72.5 sq.m
(Internal)

Internal floor area
75.5 sq.m

Garage

1st & 2cnd floors

Ground floor with stairs & corridor

8.00

5
.0

0

Footpath

Footpath

O
n
e
 w

a
y syste

m

Proposal2020/0080

Page 22 of 59

P
age 52

A
genda Item

 9



Furness Building Plans

Client

Drawn by 
Furness Building Plans

Tel. (01229) 869830

Drawing No.

Date

P2

Haveriggholme Farm, Torver 16/02/20

Scale  1:200 @ A3

72.5 sq.m
(Internal)

Internal floor area
75.5 sq.m

Footpath

Footpath

Proposed Drain Layout

Main sewers

E
xistin

g
 p

u
b
lic se

w
e
r

Foul water drain

Surface water drain

T
ra

n
s
fe

r d
ra

in
s

T
ra

n
sfe

r d
ra

in
s

2020/0080

Page 23 of 59

P
age 53

A
genda Item

 9



B20/2020/0249
Planning Committee
15th September 2020

Application Number : B20/2020/0249 Date Valid :14/04/2020

Address : 123 Rawlinson Street,
Barrow-in-Furness, Cumbria, LA14 2DN Case Officer : Jennifer Dickinson

Proposal : Change of use from a vacant ground floor office (class B1) to a one
bedroom self contained flat (class C3) with associated external alterations.

Ward : Central Ward Parish : N/A

Applicant : Mr C Seah Agent : Mr N Shepherd, Shepherd
Architecture and Surveying

Statutory Date : 09/06/2020 Recommendation : Granted with
conditions

Barrow Planning Hub

Relevant Policies and Guidance

Full details of the policies listed below are included in the appendix

National Policies

1. National Planning Policy Framework 2018- Para NPPF-011
2. National Planning Policy Framework 2018- Para NPPF-127

Local Plan Policies

1. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy DS1 - Council’s commitment
to sustainable development

2. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy DS2 - Sustainable
Development Criteria

3. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy DS5 - Design
4. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy EC4 - Loss of Employment

Land and Allocated Employment Sites
5. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy H7 - Housing Development on

Windfall Sites
6. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy HE3 - Listed Buildings

Page 24 of 59

Page 54

Agenda Item 9



Summary of Main Issues

The main issue is whether the property is acceptable in principle for conversion to
residential use and whether an acceptable level of amenity would result for the
proposed residents. The proposal also needs to comply with the requirements of
Policy EC4 in relation to the loss of a business use.

A representation has been received from an attached neighbour to the site raising
concerns over the development which has triggered the need for determination by
committee.

Response to Publicity and Consultations

Neighbours Consulted

Street Name Properties
Rawlinson Street 121, 123A, 125,

Responses Support Object Neutral

1 0 1 0

Summary of concerns raised

 Socially unacceptable to divide property into two dwellings
 Concerned about multi-occupancy as is not what the property was originally

intended for.
 Concern over additional noise
 Concern over being submitted by an agent on behalf of the applicant

Organisations Consulted

Consultee
Barrow Borough Council (Building Control)
Barrow Borough Council (Planning Policy)

List of Organisation Responses

Barrow Borough Council (Building Control) 14/04/2020

“Building regulation approval required for the proposals”.

Page 25 of 59

Page 55

Agenda Item 9



Officers Report

1.Site and Locality

1.1 The host property is a two storey mid terrace property set in an edge of town
centre location. It is currently of mixed use with a flat at first floor level and accounts
office at ground floor level. To the rear of the site is an enclosed yard facing a blank
wall serving the facing neighbour. Adjacent to the site is a three storey property to
the north and a two storey property to the south that has recently had permission to
convert from an A1 retail shop to a D1 learning centre.

2. Proposal Details

2.1 Change of use from a vacant ground floor office (class B1) to a one bedroom self
contained flat (class C3) with associated external alterations. This involves a
replacement front window and an alteration of door and window arrangements in the
rear yard. Internally acoustic stud partition walls are proposed in the lounge and
bedroom. The overall footprint of the flat is shown as 39.2m²

3. Relevant History

3.1 1982/0109 121 Rawlinson Street, Barrow-in-Furness - Alterations to front
elevations and erection of rear extension Approved 22/03/1982

3.2 1988/0554 121 Rawlinson Street, Barrow-in-Furness - Two storey rear extension
Refused 02/09/1988

3.3 48/1992/0356 119-121 Rawlinson Street Barrow-in-Furness - Rear office and
garage extension Appcond 13/08/1992

3.4 B20/2020/0179 121 Rawlinson Street, Barrow-in-Furness - Change of use from
Shop (A1) to Non-residential Learning Facility (D1) APPCOND 28/04/2020

4. Officer Assessment

4.1 The site is situated on the edge of the town centre. A photograph of the site,
which is to the left of the Bridal Shop is attached as appendix A. There is no
planning history for this particular property and it currently benefits from a first floor
flat. The locality of the site is mixed in nature with residential being the predominant
use. The proposed change of use should have minimal impact on the locality of the
site. The immediate neighbour to the south (121) has recently had permission to
convert from A1 retail to a D1 learning establishment and the neighbour to the north
is in residential use. The plans show internal acoustic walls within the bedroom and
living room which should be sufficient to ensure that should the change of use not go
ahead at 121 and it resumes a retail use, that there should be minimal disturbance to
future occupiers.

Page 26 of 59

Page 56

Agenda Item 9



4.2 The size of the proposed flat exceeds minimum space standards in the technical
guidance, although these have not been adopted by the Borough Council. Within
the Technical housing standards – nationally described space standard document
the minimum recommended size for a dwelling is stated as 37m2. The proposed flat
is above this minimum with a footprint of 39.2m2. It provides both front and rear
access with sufficient space to the rear yard for bin storage with adequate light and
ventilation. Existing privacy levels are maintained and a reasonable level of amenity
should result for the proposed occupant(s).

National Planning Policy

4.3 National Planning Policy is in favour of sustainable development which accords
with material considerations being approved without delay and places emphasis on
standards of amenity for existing and future occupiers. Under paragraph 127 criteria
f) reference is made to the nationally described space standard which this proposal
exceeds. In this instance the introduction of an additional residential flat accords with
national planning policy.

Local Policies

4.4 The Council's local plan policies follow on from national policy and place an
emphasis in favour of sustainable development. Particularly relevant to this
application is policy H7 which refers to applications for housing development. The
position of the property within the built up urban area close to the town centre means
that it is in a highly sustainable location with good sustainable transport links. The
size of the proposed flat meets with space standards and provides sufficient levels of
sunlight, daylight, privacy, outlook and ventilation. The design of the revised front
window which was amended at your officer's request is considered acceptable and
to accord with design policy DS5. The terrace of properties that the site is set within
includes some listed properties and the revised design is also considered to now
have a neutral impact on the locality of the listed buildings and accord with policy
HE3.

4.5 Local plan policy EC4 makes reference to the loss of properties for B1 use which
is an employment use. It requires that developers provide a statement to the
satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority demonstrating that:

a) There is no demand for land/buildings on the site for employment purposes,
including commercial evidence as to how the site has been marketed over the
previous 12 months; and

b) Interventions to improve the attractiveness of the site for employment uses are
not feasible.

Page 27 of 59

Page 57

Agenda Item 9



4.6 Following discussions with the agent, details of the sale of the property and its
marketing have been provided. Given the mixed use of the locality of the site it is felt
that the information provided satisfies the policy requirements. In this instance, the
loss of the B1 use is considered acceptable given the information provided and the
character of the application site. It will bring back into use a vacant ground floor unit.

4.7 When considering the representation, whilst the character of the property will
change as a result of the change of use the position of two separate flats can be
accommodated within the property to acceptable living standards. The issues of
noise and potential fire hazard which are referred to are matters that are dealt with
under the Building Regulations. In addition to this the agent has shown internal
acoustic insulation details aimed at reducing noise transfer.

5. Conclusions

5.1 The proposal will have minimal impact on the locality of the site and is considered
to be in a sustainable location. It will bring back into use a vacant property to an
acceptable standard and is considered to accord with both local and national
planning policy.

6. Recommendation

I recommend that Planning Permission be GRANTED subject to the Standard
Duration Limit and the following conditions : -

Compliance with Approved Plans

2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in all respects in
accordance with the application dated as valid on 14.4.20 and the hereby approved
documents defined by this permission as listed below, except where varied by a
condition attached to this consent:

RSC01A/PA/001A, 002D

Reason

To ensure that the development is carried out only as indicated on the drawings
approved by the Planning Authority.

3. The materials to be used in the construction of the external surfaces, including
walls, doors, and windows of the development hereby permitted shall be of the same
type, colour and texture as those used in the existing building.

Page 28 of 59

Page 58

Agenda Item 9



Reason

To ensure a satisfactory appearance to the development, and to minimise its impact
upon the surrounding area.

Informative

 Please note that any additional external alterations required under the
Building Regulations may also require prior planning consent. Please speak to
the Planning Officer before any such works are carried out

 This development may require approval under the Building Regulations.
Please contact your Building Control department on 01229 876356 for further
advice as to how to proceed.

 The proposed development is situated within the Detailed Emergency
Planning Area of the BAE site. Cumbria County Council, in liaison with the site
operator and the Office for Nuclear Regulation, have certain special
arrangements for residents/business premises in this area and particular
attention is paid to ensuring that people are aware of the appropriate action to
take in the event of an incident at the site. The applicant is advised to liaise
with the County Council Emergency Planning office to allow for further
discussion of available information: Senior Emergency Planning Officer,
Resilience Unit, Cumbria County Council, Cumbria Fire & Rescue HQ,
Carleton Ave, Penrith , Cumbria , CA10 2FA

Page 29 of 59

Page 59

Agenda Item 9



DP

SVP

DP

FRONT OFFICE

YARD

BACK OFFICE

WC STORAGE AREA

FOYERENTRANCE CORRIDOR

SITE

123

62

PENRITH PLACE

6

1

111

RAW
LINSON STREET

PENRITH STREET

FFL

WALL CONSTRUCTION KEY
EXISTING WALL

NEW MASONRY CONSTRUCTION

NEW STANDARD TIMBER STUD

DRAINAGE KEY

SOIL AND VENT PIPE  

SVP

DOWN PIPEDP

GULLY

INSULATION

ACOUSTIC STUD PARTITION WALL 

Drawn - BP
Checked - NAS

Revision Notes

Existing Ground Floor
Plan, Location Plan and
Elevation

00
1A

N/A

Change of use from a vacant

ground floor office (class B1)

to a one bedroom self

contained flat (class C3)with

associated external

alterations. 

PA

Website:
www.shepherdarchitectureandsurveying.co.uk

Telephone:
01229 808217

30.03.2020

RS
C0

1A

Barrow-in-Furness, 

123 Rawlinson Street

LA14 2DN

N/A

Scale 1:50 @A3

N

EXISTING GROUND FLOOR PLAN

Scale 1:1250 @A3

EXISTING LOCATION PLAN

Scale 1:100 @A3

EXISTING NORTH EAST

 FACING ELEVATION

© Crown copyright and database rights
2019 Ordnance Survey 0100031673

© Local Government Information House
Limited copyright and database rights 2019
0100031673

2020/0249

Page 30 of 59

P
age 60

A
genda Item

 9



FFL

New infill Brickwork
to match existing as

closely as practicable

Washing
Machine

BEDROOM
9.3m2

KITCHEN
6.1m2

LOUNGE
12.6m2

(Under Counter)

Fridge/
Freezer
(free Standing)

OVERALL FLAT AREA
39.2m2

WALL CONSTRUCTION KEY
EXISTING WALL

NEW MASONRY CONSTRUCTION

NEW STANDARD TIMBER STUD

DRAINAGE KEY

SOIL AND VENT PIPE  

SVP

DOWN PIPEDP

GULLY

INSULATION

ACOUSTIC STUD PARTITION WALL 

Drawn - BP
Checked - NAS

Revision Notes

Proposed Ground Floor
Plan and Elevation 00

2D
PA

Website:
www.shepherdarchitectureandsurveying.co.uk

Telephone:
01229 808217

24.08.2020

RS
C0

1A

Barrow-in-Furness, 

123 Rawlinson Street

LA14 2DN

Entrance foyer altered resulting in a larger
bedroom. Overall floor area of 39.2m2 confirmed
on the plan, Ground floor windows to match first
floor

Scale 1:50 @A3

N

PROPOSED GROUND FLOOR PLAN

Scale 1:100 @A3

PROPOSED NORTH EAST

 FACING ELEVATION

Change of use from a vacant

ground floor office (class B1)

to a one bedroom self

contained flat (class C3)with

associated external

alterations. 

 

 

 

 

2020/0249

Page 31 of 59

P
age 61

A
genda Item

 9



APPENDIX A 

Page 32 of 59

P
age 62

A
genda Item

 9



B13/2020/0277 
Planning Committee 
15

th
 September 2020   

  

  

Application Number : B13/2020/0277 Date Valid :11/05/2020 

Address : Land adjacent to 15 Stone Dyke 
Lane, Barrow-in-Furness, Cumbria, LA13 
0HH 

Case Officer : Maureen Smith 

Proposal : Application for Outline Planning Permission for the erection of a dwelling 
(Appearance, landscaping, layout and scale reserved for subsequent approval) 

Ward : Roosecote Ward Parish : N/A 

Applicant : Mr & Mrs Polkinghorn, 
C/o Agent  

Agent : Mrs Anthea Jones, 
Planning Branch Ltd  

Statutory Date : 06/07/2020 
Recommendation : Permission be 
Granted 

Barrow Planning Hub   

  

Relevant Policies and Guidance 

Full details of the policies listed below are included in the appendix 
 

Local Plan Policies 

1. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy C3a - Water management 
2. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy C5 - Promoting Renewable Energy 
3. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy DS1 - Council’s commitment to 

sustainable development 
4. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy DS2 - Sustainable Development Criteria 
5. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy DS3 - Development Strategy 
6. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy DS5 - Design 
7. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy DS6 - Landscaping 
8. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy GI1 - Green Infrastructure 
9. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy GI6 - Green Links 
10. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy GI9 - Private Garden Boundaries 
11. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy H7 - Housing Development on Windfall 

Sites 
12. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy H8 - Housing in Residential Gardens 
13. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy N1 - Protecting and enhancing 

landscape character 

 

Page 33 of 59

Page 63

Agenda Item 9

https://webapps.barrowbc.gov.uk/webapps/f?p=BARROWPLANNINGHUB:APPLICATIONSEARCH::::RIR,CIR:IR_REFERENCE_NUMBER:B13/2020/0277


14. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy N3 - Protecting biodiversity and 
geodiversity 

15. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy N4 - Protecting other wildlife features 

Summary of Main Issues 

The main issue is whether the principle of erecting a dwelling on the site is acceptable given 
the previous planning history and appeal decision. In addition, the proposal needs to comply 
with national and local planning policy, particularly in relation to green infrastructure and bio-
diversity, residential amenity and access. 

Response to Publicity and Consultations 

Neighbours Consulted 

Street Name Properties 
Bell Hill 4 Bell Hill Cottages, 
Leece Lane 2 Mossfield, 3 Mossfield, 1 Mossfield, 
North Row 190, 83, 
Princewood Drive 26, 
Stone Dyke Lane 15, 16, 18, 20, 22, 
   

Responses Support Object Neutral 

2 0 1 1 

One representation has been received from a property opposite the site raising the following 
concerns: 

1. Loss of privacy; 

2. Loss of wildlife habitat; 

3. Access and traffic-the road is narrow and a bus route and another property would add to 
road safety issues; 

4. Precedent - allowing consent would give other land-owners in the area the green light 
causing further disruption in a quiet area and loss of habitat. 

(This representation is discussed elsewhere in this report). 

One representation of support has also been received from an immediate neighbour raising 
the following: 

1. the site has an unkempt and overgrown appearance which spoils a tidy residential area; 

 

Page 34 of 59

Page 64

Agenda Item 9



2. The style of property is in sympathy with property in the vicinity and should improve the 
surrounding area by filling in a piece of wasteland. 

Organisations Consulted 

Consultee 
Barrow Borough Council (Building Control) 
Barrow Borough Council (Planning Policy) 
Barrow Borough Council (Public Protection Services Contamination) 
Cumbria County Council (Emergency Planning) 
Cumbria County Council (Highways) 
Cumbria County Council (LLFA) 
Cumbria Wildlife Trust 
Environment Agency (Contamination, Flood and Pollution) 
Natural England 
United Utilities (Asset Protection) 
   

List of Organisation Responses 

Barrow Borough Council (Building Control) 12/05/2020 

“Building regulation approval required for the proposals). 

Barrow Borough Council (Public Protection Services Contamination) 16/06/2020 
 
"Thank you for the above consultation. I have reviewed the available information including our 
records and I believe this plot to be low risk for contamination. However the area is above the 
threshold for radon and the design should incorporate mitigation measures for ground gas 
subject to building control approval. " 

 Cumbria County Council (Emergency Planning) 13/05/2020 

"Our response is the following: 

Spirit Energy is covered by the provision of the COMAH 2015 Regulations. There are no 
objections to the proposed development but it should be noted that the proposed development 
is situated within the Public Information Zone of the site and in liaison with the site operator 
and in liaison with the HSE special arrangements are made for residents/business premises in 
this area and particular attention is paid to ensuring that people are aware of the appropriate 
action to take in the event of an incident at the site. 

Accordingly I would be grateful if you could, in the event of the application being approved, 
advise the applicant to liaise with this office to allow for further discussion." 

 

 

Page 35 of 59

Page 65

Agenda Item 9



 Cumbria County Council (Highways & LLFA) 02/06/2020 

"Thank you for your consultation on 12/05/2020 regarding the above Planning Application. 

Cumbria County Council as the Highways Authority and the Lead Local Flood Authority 
(LLFA) has reviewed the above planning reference and our findings are detailed below. 

Highway response 

I can confirm that the Highway Authority and Lead Local Flood Authority has no objection to 
the proposed development as it is considered that the proposal does not affect the highway 
nor does it increase the flood risk on the site or elsewhere. 

I would advise that the applicant views the conditions below: 

Full details of the surface water drainage system shall be submitted to the Local 
Planning Authority for approval prior to development being commenced.  Any 
approved works shall be implemented prior to the development being completed 
and shall be maintained operational thereafter. 

Reason:       In the interests of highway safety and environmental management. 
To support Local Transport Plan Policies:  LD7, LD8 

Details showing the provision of a vehicle turning space within the site, which 
allows vehicles visiting the site to enter and leave the highway in a forward gear, 
shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority for approval.  The 
development shall not be brought into use until any such details have been 
approved and the turning space constructed.  The turning space shall not 
thereafter be used for any other purpose. 

Reason:       To ensure that provision is made for vehicle turning within the site and in 
the interests of highway safety. 
To support Local Transport Plan Policies:  LD7, LD8 

LLFA response 

The LLFA surface water map show flooding to the area and indicate a 1 in 30 chance of 
occurring each year.  

Any works within the Highway must be agreed with the Highway Authority. 

No works and/or any person performing works on any part of the Highway, including Verges, 
will be permitted, until in receipt of an appropriate permit allowing such works. Enquires should 
be made to Cumbria County Councils Streetwork’s team" 

 

 

Page 36 of 59

Page 66

Agenda Item 9



 Environment Agency (Contamination, Flood and Pollution) 08/06/2020 

"Thank you for consulting us on the above application. 

Environment Agency position 

We have no objection to the proposed development as submitted but would like to make the 
following comments. 

Environmental permit - advice to applicant 
The site is adjacent to the designated Main River Roose Beck and as such the Environmental 
Permitting (England and Wales) Regulations 2016 require a permit to be obtained for any 
activities which will take place: 

 on or within 8 metres of a main river (16 metres if tidal) 
 on or within 8 metres of a flood defence structure or culverted main river (16 metres if 

tidal) 
 on or within 16 metres of a sea defence 
 involving quarrying or excavation within 16 metres of any main river, flood defence 

(including a remote defence) or culvert 
 in a floodplain more than 8 metres from the river bank, culvert or flood defence structure 

(16 metres if it’s a tidal main river) and you don’t already have planning permission 

For further guidance please visit https://www.gov.uk/guidance/flood-risk-activities-
environmental-permits or contact our National Customer Contact Centre on 03708 506 506. 
The applicant should not assume that a permit will automatically be forthcoming once planning 
permission has been granted, and we advise them to consult with us at the earliest 
opportunity. 

Advice to LPA - Biodiversity 

The location is directly adjacent to Stank Mosses local wildlife site therefore consultation is 
needed with Cumbria Wildlife Trust to ensure all works permanent, temporary and access do 
not affect this locally designated site which contains priority habitats reedbed, willow carr and 
fen. 
The application area currently supports a number of mature tree and wherever possible these 
should be retained and incorporated into the final layout of the development area". 
  

 Natural England  20/05/2020 

"Natural England has no comments to make on this application.   

Natural England has not assessed this application for impacts on protected species.  Natural 
England has published Standing Advice which you can use to assess impacts on protected 
species or you may wish to consult your own ecology services for advice. 

Natural England and the Forestry Commission have also published standing advice on ancient 
woodland and veteran trees which you can use to assess any impacts on ancient woodland. 

Page 37 of 59

Page 67

Agenda Item 9

https://www.gov.uk/guidance/flood-risk-activities-environmental-permits
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/flood-risk-activities-environmental-permits
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/protected-species-and-sites-how-to-review-planning-proposals
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/ancient-woodland-and-veteran-trees-protection-surveys-licences
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/ancient-woodland-and-veteran-trees-protection-surveys-licences


The lack of comment from Natural England does not imply that there are no impacts on the 
natural environment, but only that the application is not likely to result in significant impacts on 
statutory designated nature conservation sites or landscapes.  It is for the local planning 
authority to determine whether or not this application is consistent with national and local 
policies on the natural environment.  Other bodies and individuals may be able to provide 
information and advice on the environmental value of this site and the impacts of the proposal 
to assist the decision making process. We advise LPAs to obtain specialist ecological or other 
environmental advice when determining the environmental impacts of development. 

We recommend referring to our SSSI Impact Risk Zones (available on Magic and as a 
downloadable dataset) prior to consultation with Natural England. Further guidance on when to 
consult Natural England on planning and development proposals is available on gov.uk at 
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/local-planning-authorities-get-environmental-advice" 

  

 United Utilities 14/05/2020 

"With reference to the above planning application, United Utilities wishes to draw attention to 
the following as a means to facilitate sustainable development within the region. 

Drainage 

In  accordance  with  the  National  Planning  Policy  Framework  (NPPF)  and  the  National 
 Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG), the site should be drained on a separate system with 
foul water draining to the public sewer and surface water draining in the most sustainable 
way. 

The NPPG clearly outlines the hierarchy to be investigated by the developer when 
considering a surface water drainage strategy. We would ask the developer to consider the 
following drainage options in the following order of priority: 

1. into the ground (infiltration); 

2. to a surface water body; 

3. to a surface water sewer, highway drain, or another drainage system; 

4. to a combined sewer. 

We recommend the applicant implements the scheme in accordance with the surface water 
drainage hierarchy outlined above. 

 

 

 

Page 38 of 59

Page 68

Agenda Item 9

http://magic.defra.gov.uk/
https://naturalengland-defra.opendata.arcgis.com/datasets/sssi-impact-risk-zones-england?geometry=-32.18%2C48.014%2C27.849%2C57.298
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/local-planning-authorities-get-environmental-advice


 

If the applicant intends to offer wastewater assets forward for adoption by United Utilities, the 
proposed detailed design will be subject to a technical appraisal by an Adoptions Engineer as 
we need to be sure that the proposal meets the requirements of Sewers for adoption and 
United Utilities’ Asset Standards. The proposed design should give consideration to long term 
operability and give United Utilities a cost effective proposal for the life of the assets. 
Therefore, should this application be approved and the applicant wishes to progress a 
Section 104 agreement, we strongly recommend that no construction commences until the 
detailed drainage design, submitted as part of the Section 104 agreement, has been 
assessed and accepted in writing by United Utilities. Any works carried out prior to the 
technical assessment being approved is done entirely at the developers own risk and could 
be subject to change. 

Details of both our S106 sewer connections and S104 sewer adoptions processes (including 
application forms) can be found on our website http://www.unitedutilities.com/builders- 
developers.aspx 

Please note we are not responsible for advising on rates of discharge to the local watercourse 
system.   This is a  matter for you to discuss with the Lead Local Flood Authority and /  or the 
Environment Agency if the watercourse is classified as main river. 

Water supply 

If the applicant intends to obtain a water supply from United Utilities for the proposed 
development, we strongly recommend they engage with us at the earliest opportunity. If 
reinforcement of the water network is required to meet the demand, this could be a significant 
project which should be accounted for in the project timeline for design and construction. 

To discuss a potential water supply or any of the water comments detailed above, the 
applicant can contact the team at  DeveloperServicesWater@uuplc.co.uk. 

Please  note,  all  internal  pipework  must  comply  with  current  Water  Supply  (water 
 fittings) Regulations 1999. 

United Utilities’ property, assets and infrastructure 

Where United Utilities’ assets exist, the level of cover to the water mains and public sewers 
must not be compromised either during or after construction. 

For advice regarding protection of United Utilities’ assets, the applicant should contact the 
teams as follows: 

Water assets – DeveloperServicesWater@uuplc.co.uk 

Wastewater assets – WastewaterDeveloperServices@uuplc.co.uk 

 

Page 39 of 59

Page 69

Agenda Item 9

http://www.unitedutilities.com/builders-developers.aspx
http://www.unitedutilities.com/builders-developers.aspx
mailto:DeveloperServicesWater@uuplc.co.uk
mailto:DeveloperServicesWater@uuplc.co.uk
mailto:WastewaterDeveloperServices@uuplc.co.uk


 

It  is  the  applicant's responsibility  to  investigate  the  possibility  of  any  United 
 Utilities’  assets potentially impacted by their proposals and to demonstrate the exact 
relationship between any United Utilities' assets and the proposed development. 

A number of providers offer a paid for mapping service including United Utilities. To find out 
how to purchase a sewer and water plan from United Utilities, please visit the Property 
Searches website; https://www.unitedutilities.com/property-searches/. You can also view the 
plans for free. To make an  appointment to  view our sewer records at  your local authority 
please contact them direct, alternatively if you wish to view the water and the sewer records 
at our Lingley Mere offices based in Warrington please ring  0370 751 0101 to book an 
appointment. 

Due to the public sewer transfer in 2011, not all sewers are currently shown on the statutory 
sewer records and we do not always show private pipes on our plans. If a sewer is 
discovered during construction; please contact a Building Control Body to discuss the matter 
further. 

For any further information regarding Developer Services and Planning, please visit our 
website at http://www.unitedutilities.com/builders-developers.aspx" 
 

----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

Officers Report 

1. Site and Locality 

1.1 This application relates to the former side garden of a property on the eastern side of Stone 
Dyke, a residential street that links the former miner's cottages on North Row to Leece Lane. 
There is a detached residential property to the north known as Mossbank 15 Stonedyke Lane, 
constructed in around 1984 and understood to be occupied by a relative  of the applicant, 
whilst to the south is a sub station. There are residential properties directly opposite with the 
Holbeck Park allotment beyond these. A small stream runs around the eastern boundary of the 
site, probably the dyke of Stone Dyke, eventually joining a larger water course at Mill Beck to 
the west. There is tree planting and fields beyond within a drumlin landscape. The site abuts 
the western area of Stone Dyke Wildlife Site, a remnant of the once extensive Stank Mosses, 
being of local wildlife importance. The ground level of the application site falls away from Stone 
Dyke Lane, and Moss Bank is  set at a lower level than  the road. The site forms a transition 
between the urban area and the open countryside beyond and at the time of the site visit the 
planting had been cut back within the site, although a mature hedgerow remained to the 
roadside frontage. 

 

 

 

Page 40 of 59

Page 70

Agenda Item 9

https://www.unitedutilities.com/property-searches/
http://www.unitedutilities.com/builders-developers.aspx


2. Proposal Details 

2.1This application is for outline planning permission for the erection of a single dwelling 
(appearance, landscaping, layout and scale are reserved for subsequent approval). Indicative 
drawings submitted with the application show how a dormer bungalow could be positioned on 
the site utilising the existing vehicular access serving 15 Stone Dyke to the north. 

3. Relevant History 

3.11984/0358 Land east of Stonedyke Lane, Barrow-in-Furness Erection of a detached 
dwelling-Appcond 04/07/1984.( This relates to the dwelling immediately to the north of the 
application site.) 

 
3.2 02/1998/0247 Moss Bank, Stone Dyke Lane, Barrow-in-Furness, Cumbria- Outline Consent 
for the erection of two bungalows. Refused 20/05/1998 This relates to the current application 
site and consent was refused because at the time the site was considered in policy terms to be 
open countryside and development would have been detrimental to the ecological interest on 
the adjacent site of local natural history interest. 

 
3.3 An appeal in relation to the above application was dismissed in 1998. 
  

4. Officer Assessment 

National Guidance 

4.1 National Policy now has a much more pro-development stance with the government keen to 
encourage house-building when meeting the criteria of sustainable development. 

4.2 Paragraph 47 of the Framework recognises that planning law requires that applications for 
planning permission be determined in accordance with the development plan, unless material 
considerations indicate otherwise. 

4.3 Chapter 5 relates to delivering a sufficient supply of homes and paragraph 59 recognises to 
support the Government’s objective of significantly boosting the supply of homes, it is 
important that a sufficient amount and variety of land can come forward where it is needed. 
Paragraph 68 advises  that small  and medium sized sites can make an important contribution 
to meeting the housing requirement of an area, and are often built-out relatively quickly. 

4.4 The Framework also emphasis the need for good design and bio-diversity net gains. 

  

 

 

Page 41 of 59

Page 71

Agenda Item 9



Policies 

4.5 Relevant policies include: DS1, DS2, DS3, DS5, DS6, C3a, C5,H7, H8,  N1,  N3, N4, GI1, 
GI6, GI9. 

4.6 The Biodiversity and Development SPD and the Draft Green Infrastructure SPD are also 
material considerations. 

4.7 The proposed new dwelling is situated at the edge of the built-up area of Barrow. Policy H7 
(a) of the Local Plan requires new housing development in Barrow to be located within or 
adjoining the built up area, therefore, a new dwelling in this location is considered to be 
acceptable in principle.  The policy also sets out a series of criteria for consideration including 
layout, design, amenity, accessibility, energy use and integration within the existing landscape 
which would mostly be considered as part of any future reserved matters application. 

4.8 Policy H8 supports housing in residential gardens subject to a series of criteria including the 
scale, design and siting being in character with adjacent development; a useable garden 
space is provided for the existing and proposed dwelling; suitable access; good integration 
with the natural environment; acceptable in terms of residential amenity; it will enhance the 
ease of movement of habitat and creation of habitat. Taking each of the criteria in turn, my 
consideration follows in italics: 

a) The scale, design and siting of the proposal would not result in a cramped form of 
development out of character with the surrounding environment; 

4.9 The plot is generous and indicative plans show how a dwelling could be positioned 
without impacting on the character of the area. The scale of a single dwelling is 
appropriate and siting and siting design will be considered at reserved matters stage. 

b) A useable shape and scale of garden proportionate to the dwelling size, including 
private space, that reflects the form and character of those predominant in the area, can 
be created for both the proposed new house and the existing house; 

4.10 The plot is generous and larger than average gardens will be retained for both 
dwellings. 

c) The site is served by a suitable access and the proposal does not compromise any 
existing access arrangement; 

4.11 An acceptable form of access is proposed and no objections have been raised by the 
Highway Authority. 

d) The proposal, by way of design, siting, boundary treatments and landscaping 
integrates seamlessly into the surrounding built, natural and, where relevant, historic 
environment; 

 

 

Page 42 of 59

Page 72

Agenda Item 9



4.12 The indicative drawings  show a dwelling following a similar building line to the 
adjacent property; siting and landscaping will be addressed at reserved matters stage.  
Suggested conditions relate to boundary treatments (including retention of the boundary 
hedgerow), landscaping, bio-diversity and green infrastructure. A proposed condition 
also restricts the height of the proposed dwelling to a similar form to the neighbouring 
plot. Overall, this should ensure the dwelling integrates seamlessly. 

e) There would be no unacceptable effects on the amenities and living conditions of 
surrounding properties from overlooking, loss of light, the overbearing nature of the 
proposal or an unacceptable increase in street parking; 

4.13 Whilst the detailed design would be considered at reserved matters stage the 
indicative drawing indicates a dwelling could be sited without impacting on the amenity of 
any adjacent residents. Parking space is to be provided within the site and a proposed 
condition restricts the height of the dwelling; the existing topography also helps mitigate 
any impact. 

f) The proposal does not prejudice the development potential of an adjacent site; 

4.14 Not applicable. 

g) The proposal is capable of demonstrating how it will enhance the ease of movement 
for wildlife and the creation of habitat; and 

4.15 Conditions seek to safeguard habitats and green infrastructure and ensure a bio-
diversity net gain as well as specific measures to assist the local migration of wildlife 
between the side and rear garden boundary. 

h) Development should not cause unjustifiable harm to the significance of any heritage 
assets on or otherwise affected by the development. 

4.16 Not relevant to this application. 

4.17 The site is within a local “operational” green link, which in this instance is a small woodland 
group and includes hedgerows. Paragraph 2.99 of the Draft Green Infrastructure Strategy SPD 
states that “the Green Link classification is focused on developing and protecting the existing 
network of mature hedgerows and small woodland groups.” In terms of the requirements of 
new development, Policy GI6 of the Local Plan states that “Proposals involving or adjacent to 
existing hedgerows or Green Links will be supported provided that they do not compromise the 
continuity or integrity of the hedgerow or Green Link.” Conditions are proposed to enhance the 
contribution made by the Green Link, as set out in Policy GI6. The Green Link could also help 
to mitigate any visual effects of the proposal on the wider area. 

 

4.18 Policy DS5 requires high quality design, with planning applications demonstrating a clear 
process that analyses and responds to the characteristics of the site and its context, taking 
account of the Council’s Green Infrastructure Strategy, although this Policy would be more 
relevant at Reserved Matters stage. 

Page 43 of 59

Page 73

Agenda Item 9



4.19 Policy N4 requires that the development should preserve and enhance biodiversity 
features, including trees and hedges, and this can be required by condition. 

4.20 The Policy team response advises that the proposal  is acceptable in principle, providing 
that it maintains the integrity and continuity of the Green Link, in accord with Policy GI6 of the 
Local Plan. 

Principle of the proposal 

4.21  Given all matters, other than access,  are reserved for subsequent approval the proposal 
is in essence related to the principle of residential development, with consideration given to the 
general likelihood that a dwelling could be constructed without causing significant detriment to 
existing residential and visual amenities; issues of detailed design will follow with any future 
reserved matters application.  Policy H7 allows "windfall" residential development in such 
circumstances, subject of course to conformity with other relevant policy. 

4.22 This is also supplemented by Policy  H8 which provides further consideration for 
development within residential gardens.  These include avoiding cramped development, 
providing sufficient garden space, suitable access, integration into the existing built 
environment, protecting amenities and not preventing any future development potential of an 
adjacent site. 

Relevant history and previous appeal decision 

4.23 Planning consent for the erection of two dwellings  was refused in 1998 and subsequently 
dismissed at appeal the same year. The main issues at the appeal were whether the site was 
located in the open countryside and the effect on the adjacent area of natural history (the 
adjacent site was designated as an area of "Local Natural History Interest" at that time).The 
Inspector took the view that the site was physically and visually part of the open countryside 
and development would have conflicted with national and local plan policy at that time. Since 
then, however, the extensive Holbeck estate has been developed to the north and the area 
has a very different feel. In addition, an ecological report has been submitted with the 
application which advises that the site can be developed without impacting on the nature 
conservation area to the east. Cumbria Wildlife Trust have been consulted but at the time of 
writing this report had not responded. 

4.24 A number of things have changed since that decision: 

1. The NPPF has been published which takes a more pro-development stance, particularly in 
relation to housing; 

2. The current Local Plan was recently adopted and the policies are less restrictive, following 
the lead of the NPPF, and the current policies are the starting point in decision-making; 

3. The character and appearance of the area has changed with the development of the 
Holbeck estate in that the area feels less rural and isolated in character such that the stream to 
the east appears to form the boundary with the open countryside; 

 

Page 44 of 59

Page 74

Agenda Item 9



4. An appeal has been allowed on neighbouring land where the Inspector judged that 
development would not extend the built-up area harmfully and the Council have allocated 
further land for housing in the vicinity in the new Local Plan; 

5. The previous proposals raised substantial local opposition with over 30 objections; only 1 
objection has been received for this application. 

Impact on residential amenity 

4.25 A key consideration is amenity, and whether an additional dwelling would result in harm to 
an unacceptable level.  Policy H17 requires that sufficient separation exists (or the design 
otherwise prevents overlooking), with 21m the usual standard. This would effectively 
continue the existing building line common in the locality, preserving separation distances for 
both privacy and amenity/sun and day lighting.   Illustrative plans show a property that takes 
advantage of the site levels with a dormer bungalow arrangement facing the west elevation 
towards the highway. Such an arrangement of roof windows or small dormers would keep any 
perceived first floor overlooking to a minimum without causing undue harm to any  adjacent 
development and would be similar in appearance to the nearest dwelling to the north. This 
form of dwelling would also be in character with the area which is predominantly made up of 
single storey dwellings opposite and adjacent to the site. Existing screening and distance 
would  protect the main ground floor rooms.  A condition can be attached to limit the submitted 
design to a single storey dwelling, with the option of a developed roof space.  It is considered 
that the plot can accept such a dwelling, and with careful design it should not significantly harm 
or alter the character of the area and amenities of adjacent dwellings, with sufficient 
garden/amenity space provided for both this plot and that remaining for no 15 Stonedyke. 

4.26 As a garden area there is currently the potential to erect a garage block, shed, summer-
house and various other domestic paraphernalia as "permitted development" and so potential 
impact needs to consider this as a fall-back. 

4.27 Whilst matters of detailed design would be addressed at reserved matters, the  illustrative 
plan demonstrates that a dwelling could comfortably be positioned at least 23m from the 
nearest dwelling to the north (partly owned by the applicant) and 21m from the nearest 
dwelling to the west (on the other side of Stone Dyke Road) which is set at a higher level than 
the application site; as a result any impact on residential amenity or perceived loss of privacy 
is likely to be  very modest. 

Highway matters 

4.28 It is proposed to utilise the existing access to no 15 Stone Dyke Lane. A turning area could 
be required by condition, as suggested by the Highway Authority,  to facilitate safe egress -  
but it is considered a relatively easy issue to resolve by design.  Similarly,  a Construction 
Method Statement can explore any access/unloading issues, with approval required before 
any work commences.  

 

 

Page 45 of 59

Page 75

Agenda Item 9



Drainage 

4.29 Drainage matters will be covered in more detail with any reserved matters application but 
no objections have been raised at this stage by either United Utilities or the LLFA; standard 
conditions are proposed. The applicant suggests that the existing foul system would be utilised 
with surface water drained to the water course at an attenuated rate. Consultee responses 
indicate that the proposal is not considered to increase flood risk on the site or elsewhere. 

Nature conservation/green infrastructure/biodiversity 

4.30 An Ecological Appraisal accompanies the application and advises that there is no 
conclusive evidence of any specifically protected species regularly occurring on the site or the 
surrounding areas which would be negatively affected by site development following the 
mitigation proposed. Unfortunately, much of the site was cleared of vegetation before the 
application was submitted and this may have impacted on the pre-development score within 
the Defra metric; nonetheless a potential net gain of 50.39% is identified (the imminent 
Environment Act is likely to require a net gain of 10%). A detailed landscaping and bio-diversity 
net-gain  action plan are required to demonstrate a more accurate value for bio-diversity net 
gain and these can be required by condition, together with a requirement to implement the 
mitigation measures in the Ecological Appraisal. 

4.31 In relation to previous site clearance, the applicant's ecologist advised: "Our first site 
assessment was in December 2019, partial site clearance had occurred before this time which 
is before the 30th January 2020 cut off time for pre-development biodiversity calculations to be 
applied retrospectively. Based on residual habitats adjacent the site which were not cleared, it 
would still be possible to extrapolate the pre-clearance site conditions. We consider a net gain 
should still be achievable if this were to be done." 

4.32 The site is within a local “operational” green link, which in this instance is a small woodland 
group and includes hedgerows. Paragraph 2.99 of the Draft Green Infrastructure Strategy SPD 
states that “the Green Link classification is focused on developing and protecting the existing 
network of mature hedgerows and small woodland groups.” In terms of the requirements of 
new development, Policy GI6 of the Local Plan states that “Proposals involving or adjacent to 
existing hedgerows or Green Links will be supported provided that they do not compromise the 
continuity or integrity of the hedgerow or Green Link.” The Mitigation Recommendations 
recommend retention of the hedgerow to the west of the site and retention of the trees within 
the wet woodland to the east and this should ensure that the Green Link is not compromised. 
The Green Link could also help to mitigate any visual effects of the proposal on the wider area. 

4.33 With the previous refusal and appeal concern was raised about the potential for a 
detrimental impact on the ecological interest of the adjacent site. No response has been 
received from Cumbria Wildlife Trust in this regard. However, the issue was also raised with 
the applicant's ecologist who responded as follows: 

 

 

 

Page 46 of 59

Page 76

Agenda Item 9



4.34 "We do not consider that drainage from development of a dwelling and garden would 
adversely impact on the adjacent wildlife site. Foul water drainage is to mains sewer. Any 
clean water leaving the site would therefore be from rainfall which would attenuate through the 
gardens. Runoff containing contaminants is unlikely, as would be the case should the proposal 
be for industrial use with extensive areas of hard standing or chemical storage. During 
construction contamination should not be allowed to enter the pond or connected wet 
woodland. To prevent this, spill kits should be provided on site. Re-fuelling of all plant and 
machinery should be undertaken away from open drains and water courses. Drip trays should 
be used under static machinery. This is detailed in our report. 

4.30 If there were still concern over this aspect of site works, a Construction Environmental 
Management Plan, to detail construction timing and mitigation measures to ensure protection 
of the adjacent sensitive sites could be prepared. This would normally be conditioned as it is 
written once construction methods and timing of works are known." It is considered that the 
proposed conditions and mitigation measures are adequate to safeguard bio-diversity and the 
adjacent site. 

Representations 

4.31 One letter of objection has been received from a neighbouring property in relation to loss 
of privacy, loss of wildlife habitat, access and traffic and precedence. Considering each of 
these concerns in turn: 

4.32 -loss of privacy-whilst only an outline application at this stage and a detailed design would 
come forward at reserved matters stage including footprint, fenestration, height and scale an 
illustrative drawing demonstrates that a dwelling can be accommodated on the site without 
adversely impacting on neighbours and satisfying the Council's normal 21m front to front 
distance. Whilst there would no doubt be  a change in outlook for nearby residents, any impact 
is mitigated by distance, the lower site levels on the application site and the existence (and 
proposed retention) of hedgerows on both sides of the road; 

4.33 -loss of wildlife habitat-the Ecological Appraisal submitted with the application advises that 
this would not be the case and suggests a potential bio-diversity net gain of 50.39%. National 
and Local Plan policies relate to bio-diversity net gain in addition to statutorily protected 
species. A bio-diversity action plan is to be required by planning condition and another 
condition should enable the local migration of wildlife so overall the proposals are considered 
to have potential benefit in this regard; 

4.34 -traffic and access-only 1 dwelling is proposed with use of the existing site access. The 
Highway Authority have raised no objection and the NPPF advises that a refusal of consent on 
highway grounds is only possible when the impact is severe; 

4.35 -precedence-planning applications are assessed on their merits and the starting point is 
the Local Plan, taking into account any other material considerations; the same considerations 
would apply to any other application so the issue of setting a dangerous precedence does not 
apply. 

 

Page 47 of 59

Page 77

Agenda Item 9



 

4.36 In addition, one letter of support has also been received from the owners of 15 Stone Dyke 
Lane, although these are understood to be related to the applicants, they state that 
development would tidy up the appearance of the site and fit in with surrounding development. 

Other 

4.37 The Council's Environmental Health Officer has advised that this plot is likely to be  low 
risk for contamination but that the  area is above the threshold for radon and the design should 
incorporate mitigation measures for ground gas.The  Council's Building Control officers have 
confirmed  that basic protection would be required under the Building Regulations and  I 
propose adding an informative to any decision notice. 

5. Conclusions 

5.1 The principle of residential development is considered to be sustainable, and the NPPF 
places great emphasis upon providing new dwellings. The full design will be addressed via the 
submission of reserved matters, but it is considered sufficient amenity can be provided without 
significant harm/change to the character of the area. 

5.2 Given the change in circumstances in the character  of the area and national and local 
planning policy since the previous appeal decision, planning approval is recommended. The 
proposal is considered to be sustainable development and the submitted ecological report 
gives comfort that a single dwelling could be erected without detriment to nature conservation 
interests and that bio-diversity net gain can result.  

6. Recommendation 
 
I recommend that Outline Planning Permission be GRANTED subject to the Standard Duration 
Limit and the following conditions : - 

  
1. Application for approval of Reserved Matters must be made not later that the expiration of 
three years beginning with this permission and the development must be begun not later than 
whichever is the later of the following dates: 
 
a) The expiration of three years from the date of this permission; 
 
or 
 
b) expiration of two years from the final approval of the Reserved Matters or in the case of 
approval on different dates, the final approval of the last such matter to be approved. 
 
Reason 
 
Required to be imposed pursuant to Section 92 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990, 
as amended by Section 51 of the Planning & Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. 
 

Page 48 of 59

Page 78

Agenda Item 9



 
Compliance with Approved Plans 
 
2. Applications for the approval of the Reserved Matters shall be in accordance with the 
principles and parameters described and illustrated in the illustrative drawings submitted with 
the outline application as listed below and the Design and Access Statement from Planning 
Branch dated October 2019, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Planning Authority: 
 
Application Form dated 30.4.20 
Location Plan 
Elevations Drawing 6243/03 
Floor Plan Drawing 6243/02 
Site Plan Drawing 6243/01 Rev A 
 
Reason 
 
To ensure that the development shall be carried out in an orderly and satisfactory manner and 
in the interests of the appearance of the development and the residential amenity of the area. 
 
3. No development whatsoever shall take place until full details of the, appearance, 
landscaping, layout, and scale of the development have been submitted to and approved by 
the Planning Authority and the development shall conform to such approved details. 
 
Reason 
 
Required to be imposed pursuant to Section 92 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990, 
as amended by Section 51 of the Planning & Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. 
 
Pre-commencement Conditions 
 
4. Prior to the commencement of any development, a landscape scheme for the site, showing 
the trees, shrubs and hedgerows, including verges and other open spaces, together with 
details of a timetable for implementation, (including any phasing of such a scheme) must be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Planning Authority. The scheme shall be submitted 
on a plan not greater that 1:500 in scale and shall contain details of numbers, locations and 
species of plants to be used. The scheme shall be implemented in accordance with the 
approved details, and all planting and subsequent maintenance shall be to current British 
Standards. The landscape scheme shall take account of the recommendations set out in the 
Ecological Appraisal prepared by Envirotech dated 19.12.2019 and the Mitigation 
Recommendations in Section 7 in relation to retention of trees within the wet woodland area, 
replacement and additional planting and retention and improvement of the hedgerow to the 
west of the site. 
 
Reason 
 
In the interests of the visual amenities of the area and to ensure that landscaping and bio-
diversity net gain are co-ordinated. 

 
 

Page 49 of 59

Page 79

Agenda Item 9



5. No development shall be commenced on site, until a scheme has been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Planning Authority, showing measures to be taken to protect and 
enhance the hedgerow to the west of the site as an integral part of any development of the 
site. 
 
Reason 
 
In the interests of the visual amenities of the area and to ensure bio-diversity and habitat 
enhancement. 
 
6. No development shall be commenced on the site which is the subject of this permission until 
the following measures have been met to prevent damage being caused to those trees and 
hedgerows which are shown to be retained. Measures to protect those trees shown to be 
retained must include the following; 
 
a) Fencing in accordance with the Tree Constraints Plan/AMS dated 9.12.19 and Location 
Plan received by the Local Planning Authority on 01.05.20 must be erected around each tree 
or group of trees. This fencing must be at least 1.25 metres high and at a radius from the trunk 
defined by the crown spread but not exceeding 4.5 metres. 
 
b) No excavations, site works, trenches, channels, pipes, services, temporary buildings used in 
connection with the development, areas for the deposit of soil or waste, or for storage of 
construction materials, equipment or fuel, shall be sited within the crown spread of any tree 
without the prior express consent of the Planning Authority. 
 
c) No burning of any materials shall take place with within 6 metres of any tree or tree groups 
to be retained without the prior express consent 
 
Reason 
 
In order to ensure that damage does not occur to the trees during building or engineering 
operations. 
 
7. Prior to the commencement of any development, the location, type and situation of any 
screen walls or fences shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Planning Authority. 
Before the development hereby approved is occupied such screen walls or fences shall be 
erected and thereafter retained unless the Planning Authority gives prior written consent to any 
variation. 
 
Reason 
 
In the interests of the visual amenities of the area and in order to allow through migration of the 
site by wildlife. 

 

 

 
 

Page 50 of 59

Page 80

Agenda Item 9



8. No development shall take place until a Construction Method Statement has been submitted 
to, and approved in writing by, the Planning Authority. The approved Statement shall be 
adhered to throughout the construction period. The Statement shall provide for all of the 
following: 
i. the parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors; 
ii. loading and unloading of plant and materials; 
iii. storage of plant and materials used in constructing the development; 
iv. the proposed construction vehicle and delivery routing plans; 
v. wheel washing facilities where vehicles will enter/exit the site; 
vi. measures to control the emission of dust and dirt during construction. 
 
Reason 
 
In the interests of minimising the impact upon local environmental amenity. 
 
9. No soil material is to be imported to the site until it has been tested for contamination and 
assessed for its suitability for the proposed development. A suitable methodology for testing 
this material should be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority prior to the 
soils being imported onto site. The methodology should include the sampling frequency, 
testing schedules, criteria against which the analytical results will be assessed (as determined 
by the risk assessment) and source material information. The analysis shall then be carried out 
as per the agreed methodology with verification of its completion submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
 
Reason 
 
To ensure that the development can be carried out safely without unacceptable risks to 
workers, neighbours and other offsite receptors and to ensure that risks from land 
contamination to the future users of the land and neighbouring land are minimised, together 
with those to controlled waters, property and ecological systems in accordance with Local Plan 
Policy C4 of the Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031. 
 
10. The site should be drained on a separate system with foul water draining to the public 
sewer and surface water draining in the most sustainable way. The National Planning Practice 
Guidance clearly outlines the hierarchy to be investigated when considering a surface water 
drainage strategy, in the following order of priority: 
1. into the ground (infiltration); 
2. to a surface water body; 
3. to a surface water sewer, highway drain, or another drainage system; 
4. to a combined sewer. 
Justification for and details of the proposed system shall be submitted to, and approved in 
writing by the Planning Authority prior to installation, and thereafter installed and maintained in 
accordance with the approved details. 
 
Reason 
 
To ensure the site is drained by the most sustainable method in accordance with the principles 
of the NPPF and Local Plan Policy C3a. 
 

Page 51 of 59

Page 81

Agenda Item 9



 
11. Details showing the provision of a vehicle turning space within the site, which allows 
vehicles visiting the site to enter and leave the highway in a forward gear, shall be submitted to 
the Local Planning Authority for approval. The development shall not be brought into use until 
any such details have been approved and the turning space constructed. The turning space 
shall not thereafter be used for any other purpose. 
 
Reason 
 
To ensure that provision is made for vehicle turning within the site and in the interests of 
highway safety. 
 
12. Any reserved matters application shall include a bio-diversity net gain plan and habitat and 
landscape management plan which shall provide details of bio-diversity net gain measures and 
details of enhancement and protection of ecological features. The document shall include the 
Mitigation Recommendations set out in the Ecological Appraisal prepared by envirotech (report 
reference 6129 dated 19.12.20 and the documents shall be submitted to and be approved in 
writing by the local planning authority. The development shall not proceeed except in 
accordance with the approved proposals. 
 
Reason 
 
To ensure that bio-diversity net gain is achieved on the site and that any existing features of 
biodiversity interest are retained and that opportunities to incorporate biodiversity in and 
around the development are encouraged. 
 
Before Occupation 
 
13. All planting, seeding or turfing comprised in the approved details of landscaping shall be 
carried out in the first planting and seeding seasons following beneficial occupation of any part 
of the development, or in accordance with the phasing of the scheme as agreed in writing with 
the Planning Authority. Any trees or plants which within a period of five years from the 
completion of the development die, are removed, or become seriously damaged or diseased, 
shall be replaced by the landowner in the next planting season with others of a similar size and 
species, unless the Planning Authority gives prior written consent to any variation. 
 
Reason 
 
In the interests of the visual amenities of the area. 
 
Operational Conditions 
 
14. Any garage, parking spaces and access thereto must be reserved for the parking of private 
motor vehicles and no permanent development, whether permitted by the Town & Country 
Planning (General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (as amended, or any Order 
revoking or re-enacting that Order with or without modifications) or not, shall be carried out on 
that area of land in such position as to preclude vehicular access to the development hereby 
permitted. 

 

Page 52 of 59

Page 82

Agenda Item 9



 
Reason 
 
To ensure that proper access and parking provision is made and retained for the use 
associated with the development hereby permitted. 
 
15. The dwelling hereby permitted shall be a single storey building, with any first floor 
accommodation limited to the roof space only. 
 
Reason 
 
In the interests of and to protect the existing visual and residential amenities of the area. 
 
Informative 
  

 Please note that any additional external alterations required under the Building 
Regulations may also require prior planning consent. Please speak to the Planning 
Officer before any such works are carried out. 

   

 Please be aware of the Safe Dig service from United Utilities by contacting United 
Utilities at; UUSafeDig@uuplc.co.uk 

   

 This development may require approval under the Building Regulations. Please contact 
your Building Control department on 01229 876356 for further advice as to how to 
proceed. 

   

 Radon 
The area is above the threshold for radon and the design should incorporate mitigation 
measures for ground gas subject to building control approval. 

   

 Energy Efficiency 
When detailed designs are submitted at reserved matters stage, proposals will be 
encouraged to maximise the design of the dwelling, use of materials, the layout and 
orientation on site to be as energy efficient as possible. All new developments will be 
encouraged to incorporate renewable energy production equipment, sources of 
renewable energy such as photovoltaics and the potential for renewable, low carbon or 
decentralised energy schemes appropriate to the scale and location of the development 
provided they accord with the requirements of Policy C6.Energy Efficiency 

   

Page 53 of 59

Page 83

Agenda Item 9



 Spirit Energy is covered by the provision of the COMAH 2015 Regulations. It should be 
noted that the proposed development is situated within the Public Information Zone of 
the site and in liaison with the site operator and in liaison with the HSE special 
arrangements are made for residents/business premises in this area and particular 
attention is paid to ensuring that people are aware of the appropriate action to take in 
the event of an incident at the site. 
The applicant is advised to liaise with the County Council Emergency Planning office to 
allow for further discussion of available information: Senior Emergency Planning Officer, 
Resilience Unit, Cumbria County Council, Cumbria Fire & Rescue HQ, Carleton Ave, 
Penrith , Cumbria , CA10 2FA 

   

 Any works within the Highway must be agreed with the Highway Authority. 
No works and/or any person performing works on any part of the Highway, including 
Verges, will be permitted, until in receipt of an appropriate permit allowing such works. 
Enquires should be made to Cumbria County Councils Streetwork’s team 

 

 The site is adjacent to the designated Main River Roose Beck and as such the 
Environmental Permitting (England and Wales) Regulations 2016 require a permit to be 
obtained for any activities which will take place: 
• on or within 8 metres of a main river (16 metres if tidal) 
• on or within 8 metres of a flood defence structure or culverted main river (16 metres if 
tidal) 
• on or within 16 metres of a sea defence 
• involving quarrying or excavation within 16 metres of any main river, flood defence 
(including a remote defence) or culvert 
• in a floodplain more than 8 metres from the river bank, culvert or flood defence 
structure (16 metres if it’s a tidal main river) and you don’t already have planning 
permission 
For further guidance please visit https://www.gov.uk/guidance/flood-risk-activities-
environmental-permits or contact our National Customer Contact Centre on 03708 506 
506. The applicant should not assume that a permit will automatically be forthcoming 
once planning permission has been granted, and we advise them to consult with us at 
the earliest opportunity. 
 

__________________________________________________________________________ 

   

  

  

  

Page 54 of 59

Page 84

Agenda Item 9



Leanne Moscrop

From: Maureen Smith <mzsmith1968@icloud.com>
Sent: 21 August 2020 18:46
To: Maureen Smith
Subject: May Be Spoofed - (null)

 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 

Page 55 of 59

Page 85

Agenda Item 9

babirch
Typewritten text

babirch_1
Typewritten text
APPENDIX A



2

 
 

 
 
 
Sent from my iPhone 

Page 56 of 59

P
age 86

A
genda Item

 9



2020/0277

Page 57 of 59

Page 87

Agenda Item 9



2020/0277

Page 58 of 59

P
age 88

A
genda Item

 9



2020/0277

Page 59 of 59

P
age 89

A
genda Item

 9



PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 

15th September 2020 
 

 

INDEX 
 

 
 
 

Page Reference  Address Proposal  

2 2020/0080 Car Body Repair 
Workshop, Schneider 
Road, Barrow-in-Furness 
Cumbria LA14 5DN 
 

Application for Outline Planning Permission with all 
matters reserved for existing workshops to be 
replaced by ten domestic dwellings.  
 

24 2020/0249 123 Rawlinson Street, 
Barrow-in-Furness, 
Cumbria, LA14 2DN 
 

Change of use from a vacant ground floor office  
(class B1 ) to a one bedroom self contained flat  
(class C3) with associated external alterations. 
 

33 2020/0277 Land adjacent to 15 
Stone Dyke Lane, 
Barrow-in-Furness, 
Cumbria, LA13 
0HH 
 

 

Application for Outline Planning Permission for the 
erection of a dwelling (Appearance, landscaping, 
layout and scale reserved for subsequent approval)  
 

 

Page 90

Agenda Item 9



 
 

Appendices of Policies 
 

 

Note to Members 
 

 

Below are the full wordings of the policies relevant to the applications found on the 

agenda today. 

 

National Planning Policy Framework 2018 
 

 

NPPF-011 

Plans and decisions should apply a presumption in favour of sustainable development. 

For plan-making this means that: 

a) plans should positively seek opportunities to meet the development needs of their  

 
area, and be sufficiently flexible to adapt to rapid change; 

 

 

b) strategic policies should, as a minimum, provide for objectively assessed needs for 

housing and other uses, as well as any needs that cannot be met within neighbouring 

areas (As established through statements of common ground (see paragraph 27), 

unless: 
 

 

i. the application of policies in this Framework that protect areas or assets of particular 

importance provides a strong reason for restricting the overall scale, type or distribution 

of development in the plan area (The policies referred to are those in this Framework 

(rather than those in development plans) relating to: habitats sites (and those sites listed 

in paragraph 176) and/or designated as Sites of Special Scientific 

Interest; land designated as Green Belt, Local Green Space, an Area of Outstanding 

Natural Beauty, a National Park (or within the Broads Authority) or defined as Heritage 

Coast; irreplaceable habitats; designated heritage assets (and other heritage assets of 

archaeological interest referred to in footnote 63); and areas at risk of flooding or coastal 

change); or 
 

 

ii. any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the 

benefits, when assessed against the policies in this Framework taken as a whole. 
 

 

For decision-taking this means: 
 

 

c) approving development proposals that accord with an up-to-date development plan 

without delay; or 
 

 

d) where there are no relevant development plan policies, or the policies which are most 

important for determining the application are out-of-date (This includes, for applications 

involving the provision of housing, situations where the local planning authority cannot 

Page 91

Agenda Item 9



demonstrate a five year supply of deliverable housing sites (with the appropriate buffer, 

as set out in paragraph 73); or where the Housing Delivery Test indicates that the 

delivery of housing was substantially below (less than 75% of) the housing requirement 

over the previous three years. Transitional arrangements for the Housing Delivery Test 

are set out in Annex 1), granting permission unless: 
 

 

i. the application of policies in this Framework that protect areas or assets of particular 

importance provides a clear reason for refusing the development proposed (The policies 

referred to are those in this Framework (rather than those in development plans) relating 

to: habitats sites (and those sites listed in paragraph 176) and/or designated as Sites of 

Special Scientific Interest; land designated as Green Belt, Local Green Space, an Area 

of Outstanding Natural Beauty, a National Park (or within the Broads Authority) or 

defined as Heritage Coast; irreplaceable habitats; designated heritage assets (and other 

heritage assets of archaeological interest referred to in footnote 63); and areas at risk of 

flooding or coastal change); or 

 
 

 
ii. any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the 

benefits, when assessed against the policies in this Framework taken as a whole. 
 

 

NPPF-127 

Planning policies and decisions should ensure that developments: 
 

 

a) will function well and add to the overall quality of the area, not just for the short term 

but over the lifetime of the development; 
 

 

b) are visually attractive as a result of good architecture, layout and appropriate and 

effective landscaping; 
 

 

c) are sympathetic to local character and history, including the surrounding built 

environment and landscape setting, while not preventing or discouraging appropriate 

innovation or change (such as increased densities); 
 

 

d) establish or maintain a strong sense of place, using the arrangement of streets, 

spaces, building types and materials to create attractive, welcoming and distinctive 

places to live, work and visit; 
 

 

e) optimise the potential of the site to accommodate and sustain an appropriate amount 

and mix of development (including green and other public space) and support local 

facilities and transport networks; and 
 

 

f) create places that are safe, inclusive and accessible and which promote health and 

well-being, with a high standard of amenity for existing and future users (Planning 

policies for housing should make use of the Government's optional technical standards 

for accessible and adaptable housing, where this would address an identified need for 

such properties. Policies may also make use of the nationally described space standard, 

Page 92

Agenda Item 9



where the need for an internal space standard can be justified); and where crime and 

disorder, and the fear of crime, do not undermine the quality of life or community 

cohesion and resilience. 
 

Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 
 

 

Policy C2 - Development and the Coast 

Development in a coastal location will only be permitted where: 
 

 

a) There will be no unacceptable harm to natural coastal processes, including increasing 

the risk of flooding, coastal erosion and instability; 
 

 

b) There will be no unacceptable harm to habitats, species, geodiversity, designated 

sites and the historic environment; 
 

 

c) The capacity of the coast to form a natural sea defence or adjust to changes in 

conditions without risk to life or property will not be prejudiced; 
 

 

d) There will not be an increased need for additional sea walls or other civil engineering 

works (defence structures) for coastal protection purposes except where necessary to 

protect existing investment; 
 

 

e) The open character of the undeveloped coast is maintained, with the existing 

landscape character of the site respected and reinforced; 
 

 

f) Local fisheries will not be prejudiced; 
 

 

g) There will be no unacceptable adverse effect on people's enjoyment of natural 

landscape character; and 
 

 

h) There will be no adverse effect on recreational activities at the coast. 
 

 

Opportunities to improve access to the coast will be sought where possible and where 

the above criteria can be met. 
 

 

Policy C3a - Water management 

All new development will minimise its impacts on the environment through the following 

measures: 
 

 

a) New development will achieve the minimum standards for water efficiency, as defined 

by Building Regulations (Approved Document G). By the installation of fittings and fixed 

appliances, water recycling or other appropriate measures for the prevention of undue 

consumption of water and which recycle and conserve water resources.

Page 93

Agenda Item 9



 

 
b) New development will be required to prioritise the use of sustainable drainage 

systems (SUDS) and ensure there is no increase in flood risk from surface water. 

Drainage systems should be of a high design standard and will benefit biodiversity and 

contribute to improved water quality. Developers will be expected to submit a Drainage 

Strategy that shows how foul and surface water will be effectively managed. Surface 

water should be discharged in the following order of priority: 
 

 

i. An adequate soakaway or some other form of infiltration system. 

ii. An attenuated discharge to a surface water body such as a watercourse. 

iii. An attenuated discharge to public surface water sewer, highway drain or another 

drainage system. 

iv. An attenuated discharge to public combined sewer. 
 

 

Applicants wishing to discharge to public sewer will need to submit clear evidence 

demonstrating why alternative options are not available. 
 

 

c) Approved development proposals will be expected to be supplemented by appropriate 

maintenance and management regimes for surface water drainage schemes. 
 

 

d) On large sites, applicants should ensure that the drainage proposals are part of a 

wider, holistic strategy, which coordinates the approach to drainage between phases, 

between developers/landowners and over a number of years of construction. 
 

 

e) On greenfield sites, applicants will be expected to demonstrate that the current 

natural discharge from a site is at least mimicked. 
 

 

f) On previously-developed land, applicants should target a reduction of surface water 

discharge in accordance with the non-statutory technical standards for sustainable 

drainage produced by DEFRA. In demonstrating a reduction, applicants should include 

clear evidence of existing positive connections from the site with associated calculations 

on rates of discharge. 
 

 

g) Landscaping proposals should consider what contribution the landscaping of a site 

can make to reducing surface water discharge. This can include hard and soft 

landscaping such as permeable surfaces. 
 

 

h) The treatment and processing of surface water is not a sustainable solution. Surface 

water should be managed at source and not transferred. Every option should be 

investigated before discharging surface water into a public sewerage network. A 

discharge to groundwater or watercourse may require the consent of the Environment

Page 94

Agenda Item 9



Agency or Cumbria County Council as Lead Local Flood Authority.  
 

 

The retrofitting of SuDS in locations that generate surface water run-off will be 

supported, subject to the criteria above. 
 

 

Policy C5 - Promoting Renewable Energy 

New development must take into account the effects of climate change, promote the use 

of energy efficient methods and materials, and minimise its impact on the environment. 

Proposals will be encouraged to maximise the design of buildings, use of materials, their 

layout and orientation on site to be as energy efficient as possible. 
 

 

All new developments will be encouraged to incorporate renewable energy production 

equipment, sources of renewable energy such as photovoltaics and the potential for 

renewable, low carbon or decentralised energy schemes appropriate to the scale and 

location of the development provided they accord with the requirements of Policy C6. 
 

 

Policy DS1 - Council’s commitment to sustainable development 

When determining planning applications the Council will take a positive approach to 

ensure development is sustainable. The Council will work pro-actively with applicants to 

find positive solutions that allow suitable proposals for sustainable developments to be 

approved wherever possible. 
 

 

The Council is committed to seeking to enhance the quality of life for residents by taking 

an integrated approach to protect, conserve and enhance the built, natural and historic 

environment whilst ensuring access to essential services and facilities and a wider 

choice of housing. This will enable the Local Plan's Vision and Objectives to be met and 

to secure development that simultaneously achieves economic, social and 

environmental gains for the Borough. 
 

 

Planning applications that accord with the Development Plan will be approved without 

delay, unless material considerations indicate otherwise. 
 

 

Where there are no policies relevant to the application or relevant policies are out of 

date at the time of making the decision then the Council will grant permission unless 

material considerations indicate otherwise, taking into account whether: 
 

 

a) Any adverse impacts of granting permission would significantly and demonstrably 

outweigh the benefits when assessed against the policies in the National Planning 

Policy Framework (or any document which replaces it)  taken as a whole; or

Page 95

Agenda Item 9



 

 

 
b) Specific policies in the Framework (or any document which replaces it) indicate that 

development should be restricted. 
 
 

 
Policy DS2 - Sustainable Development Criteria 

In order to meet the objectives outlined in Policy DS1, subject to other Development 

Plan policies which may determine the suitability of particular sites, all proposals should 

meet all of the following criteria, where possible, taking into account the scale of 

development and magnitude of impact and any associated mitigation by: 
 

 

a) Ensuring that proposed development incorporates green infrastructure designed and 

integrated to enable accessibility by walking, cycling and public transport for main travel 

purposes, particularly from areas of employment and retail, leisure and education 

facilities; 
 

 

b) Ensuring development does not prejudice road safety or increase congestion at 

junctions that are identified by the Local Highway Authority as being over-capacity; 
 

 

c) Ensuring access to necessary services, facilities and infrastructure and ensuring that 

proposed development takes into account the capacity of existing or planned utilities 

infrastructure; 
 

 

d) Ensuring that the health, safety and environmental effects of noise, smell, dust, light, 

vibration, fumes or other forms of pollution or nuisance arising from the proposed 

development including from associated traffic are within acceptable levels; 
 

 

e) Respecting the residential amenity of existing and committed dwellings, particularly 

privacy, security and natural light; 
 

 

f) Protecting the health, safety or amenity of occupants or users of the proposed 

development; 
 

 

g) Contributing to the enhancement of the character, appearance and historic interest of 

related landscapes, settlements, street scenes, buildings, open spaces, trees and other 

environmental assets; 
 

 

h) Contributing to the enhancement of biodiversity and geodiversity; 
 

 

i) Ensuring that construction and demolition materials are re-used on the site if possible;

Page 96

Agenda Item 9



j) Avoiding adverse impact on mineral extraction and agricultural production;  
 

 

k) Ensuring that proposals incorporate energy and water efficiency measures (in 

accordance with the relevant Building Regulations), the use of sustainable drainage 

systems where appropriate and steers development away from areas of flood risk; 
 

 

l) Ensuring that any proposed development conserves and enhances the historic 

environment including heritage assets and their settings; and 
 

 

m) Development must comply with Policy DS3. 
 

 

Where the applicant demonstrates that one or more of the criteria cannot be met, they 

must highlight how the development will contribute towards the achievement of the Local 

Plan objectives by alternative means. 
 

 

Policy DS3 - Development Strategy 

The Council will pursue an overarching strategy of sustainable balanced growth, 

redistributing development across the Borough, to improve the residential environment 

of the central Barrow area and whilst also allowing some development adjoining Barrow 

and Dalton and within the cordon villages. Other development will be supported where it 

complies with local and national planning policy. 
 

 

The distribution of housing development is outlined in Policy H2, and Policy H3 contains 

a balanced portfolio of sites, in a range of locations throughout the Borough, both 

brownfield and greenfield in order to support the achievement of this Strategy, other 

windfall developments will be supported where the proposal accords with national and 

local policy. 
 

 

This Strategy seeks to promote the opportunities and strengths enjoyed by the Borough 

and achieve sustainable development that enhances its offer in terms of housing, 

employment, leisure and culture, and encourages inward investment. 
 

 

Policy DS5 - Design 

New development must be of a high quality design, which will support the creation of 

attractive, vibrant places. Designs will be specific to the site and planning applications 

must demonstrate a clear process that analyses and responds to the characteristics of 

the site and its context, including surrounding uses, taking into account the Council's 

Green Infrastructure Strategy. Proposals must demonstrate clearly how they:

Page 97

Agenda Item 9



 

 

 
a) Integrate with and where possible conserve and enhance the character of the 

adjoining natural environment, taking into account relevant Supplementary Planning 

Documents; 
 

 

b) Conserve and enhance the historic environment, including heritage assets and their 

setting; 
 

 

c) Make the most effective and efficient use of the site and any existing buildings upon it; 
 

 

d) Create clearly distinguishable, well defined and designed public and private spaces 

that are attractive, accessible, coherent and safe and provide a stimulating environment; 
 

 

e) Allow permeability and ease of movement within the site and with surrounding areas, 

placing the needs of pedestrians, cyclists and public transport above those of the 

motorist, depending on the nature and function of the uses proposed; 
 

 

f) Create a place that is easy to find your way around with routes defined by a well- 

structured building layout; 
 

 

g) Prioritise building and landscape form over parking and roads, so that vehicular 

requirements do not dominate the sites appearance and character; 
 

 

h) Exhibit design quality using design cues and materials appropriate to the area, locally 

sourced wherever possible; 
 

 

i) Respect the distinctive character of the local landscape, protecting and incorporating 

key environmental assets of the area, including topography, landmarks, views, trees, 

hedgerows, habitats and skylines. Where no discernible or positive character exists, 

creating a meaningful hierarchy of space that combines to create a sense of place; 
 

 

j) Create layouts that are inclusive and promote health, well-being, community cohesion 

and public safety; 
 

 

k) Incorporate public art where this is appropriate to the project and where it can 

contribute to design objectives; 
 

 

l) Ensure that development is both accessible and usable by different age groups and 

people with disabilities; 
 

 

m) Integrate Sustainable Drainage Systems of an appropriate form and scale;

Page 98

Agenda Item 9



 

 
 
 
 

n) Mitigate against the impacts of climate change by the incorporation of energy and 

water efficiency measures (in accordance with the Building Regulations), the orientation 

of new buildings, and use of recyclable materials in construction; and 
 

 

o) Ensuring that new development avoids creating nesting sites for gulls e.g. through the 

provision of appropriate roof pitches. 
 

 
 
 
 

Policy DS6 - Landscaping 

Landscaping should be viewed as an integral part of the design process and should 

include soft and hard landscaping, street furniture, lighting and public art where 

appropriate. 
 

 

A Landscaping Scheme and maintenance regime will be required as part of a full 

planning application. This is particularly relevant where development will have a 

significant impact upon the surrounding environment or where the development 

occupies a site in a prominent location. The Cumbria Landscape Character Toolkit 

should be used as a baseline tool to determine the impacts of new development on the 

landscape and the type of landscaping and/or mitigation to be put in place. 
 

 

All soft landscaping, including all existing trees, shrubs and planted areas should be 

shown along with details of any protective measures proposed. Details of new trees, 

shrubs and planted areas in terms of species, density, size, spacing and position should 

be included. Native species should be used with decorative species used only for accent 

purposes in support of other design objectives. Native planting is particularly important 

in areas adjacent to natural habitats e.g. watercourses. 
 

 

Proposals must demonstrate that any soft landscaping proposed will have a positive 

visual impact upon the area and is able to survive in its environment. 
 

 

In terms of hard landscaping, materials used must be of a colour and texture appropriate 

to the locally distinctive character of the area, be durable, practical for the proposed use 

under a variety of weather conditions and incorporate permeable surfaces to alleviate 

run off. 
 

 

Suitable maintenance regimes for soft and hard schemes will be the subject of planning 

conditions or unilateral undertakings as appropriate.

Page 99

Agenda Item 9



 

 

 
Policy EC4 - Loss of Employment Land and Allocated Employment Sites 

In determining planning applications for non-employment uses which involve the loss of 

land and/or buildings which are either identified, currently used or were last used for 

industrial, business, office or other employment uses (B1, B2, B8), developers will be 

required to provide a statement to the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority 

demonstrating that: 
 

 

a)    There is no demand for land/buildings on the site for employment purposes, 

including commercial evidence as to how the site has been marketed over the previous 

12 months; 
 
 

 
b)    Interventions to improve the attractiveness of the site for employment uses are not 

feasible. 
 

 

This policy does not apply to sites which are allocated for other uses in the Development 

Plan. 
 
 

 
Policy GI1 - Green Infrastructure 

The Council, through the preparation and adoption of the Green Infrastructure Strategy 

SPD, Masterplans and Development Briefs will identify and promote the creation, 

enhancement and protection of a Green Infrastructure Framework designed to maintain, 

enhance, expand and connect a network of natural and man-made green and blue 

spaces together along with the project focus necessary to secure and implement its 

delivery. 
 

 

The Council will work proactively with the community, public sector partners, voluntary 

sector, developers and utility providers to: 
 
 

 
(a)     Ensure that all new development contributes to the protection and enhancement of 

the Borough's distinctive and valued landscape and settlement character implementing a 

network of Green Infrastructure as the context and setting for coherent and locally 

distinctive place making. 
 

 

(b)     Utilise landscape and urban design techniques together to assimilate development 

and its supporting Green Infrastructure into sustainable, attractive multi-functional 

layouts.

Page 100

Agenda Item 9



 

 

 
(c)     Integrate sustainable movement choices at all scales that support domestic, 

leisure and tourism movements around and beyond the Borough to actively encourage 

improved health, fitness and well-being. 
 

 

(d)     Protect and integrate amenity open spaces, playing fields, sports pitches and play 

areas within areas of Green Infrastructure including where a need is demonstrated. 
 

 

(e)     Protect, support and enhance biodiversity by creating inaccessible and well- 

connected habitat within and between neighbouring areas that allows wildlife to co-exist 

undisturbed whilst improving peoples accessibility to nature; 
 

 

(f)      Include adaptive measures to help offset climate change including sustainable 

urban drainage (SUDs) management and tree planting to reduce the impact of flooding 

and assist in the cooling of `urban heat islands'; and 
 

 

(g)     Facilitate local food production in allotments, gardens and adjacent agriculture 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Policy GI6 - Green Links 

Proposals involving or adjacent to existing hedgerows or Green Links will be supported 

provided that they do not compromise the continuity or integrity of the hedgerow or 

green link. 
 

 

Where considered appropriate by the Planning Authority proposals should enhance the 

contribution made by the hedgerow or green link. 
 

 
 
 
 

Policy GI9 - Private Garden Boundaries 

Development proposals will need to incorporate specific measures to assist the local 

migration of wildlife between the side and rear garden boundaries of dwellings. 

Proposals that actively promote accessibility and habitat for wildlife will be encouraged. 

Proposals that would inhibit such movement will be resisted.

Page 101

Agenda Item 9



 

 

 
Policy H14 - Affordable Housing 

Delivery of affordable housing, including Rent to Buy homes, will be supported where the 

proposal meets national and local policy. Proposals for housing development will be 

assessed according to how well they meet the identified needs and aspirations of the 

Borough's housing market area as set out in the most up-to-date Strategic Housing 

Market Assessment and/or any more recent evidence of need. It is expected that 10% of 

dwellings on sites of 10 units or over should be affordable (as defined by the NPPF 

(2012) or any document which replaces it). Alternatively contributions to the provision of 

affordable units off-site will be considered where justified. On and off site provision will 

be secured through a Section 106 Agreement. Tenure split must reflect that stated as 

required in the latest Strategic Housing Market Assessment where possible. 
 

 

A lower proportion of affordable housing, or an alternative tenure split, may be permitted 

where it can be clearly demonstrated by way of a financial appraisal that the 

development would not otherwise be financially viable either due to this requirement or 

due to the cumulative impact of this requirement and other required contributions. Early 

dialogue with the Council on this matter is essential. It is not acceptable to sub-divide a 

site and purposely design a scheme to avoid making affordable housing contributions. 
 

 

Policy H7 - Housing Development on Windfall Sites 

Applications for residential development will be permitted where they satisfy all of the 

following criteria: 
 

 

a)    The site is located within or adjoining the built up areas of Barrow and Dalton or 

within a development cordon identified in Policy H4; 
 

 

b)    Site planning, layout and servicing arrangements are developed comprehensively; 
 

 

c)    Buildings are well designed in terms of siting, grouping, scale, orientation, detailing, 

external finishes, security and landscaping in response to the form, scale, character , 

environmental quality and appearance of the site and the surrounding area; 
 

 

d)    An acceptable standard of amenity is created for future residents of the property in 

terms of sunlighting, daylighting, privacy, outlook,  noise and ventilation; 
 

 

e)    The site is served by a satisfactory access that would not impact unduly on the 

highway network; 
 

 

f)    The site has been designed to promote accessibility by walking, cycling and public 

transport, as opposed to the private car;

Page 102

Agenda Item 9



 

 
 
 
 

g)    The development is sustainable in its energy usage, environmental impact, 

drainage, waste management, transport implications and is not at risk of flooding; 
 

 

h)    The capacity of the current and proposed infrastructure to serve the development is 

adequate taking into account committed and planned housing development; 
 

 

i)    Where spare infrastructure capacity is not available, the site has the ability to 

provide for the infrastructure requirements it generates, subject to criterion f); 
 

 

j)    Within rural settlements the applicant will be expected to demonstrate how the 

development will enhance or maintain the vitality of the rural community where the 

housing is proposed; 
 

 

k)    Where the site is located on the edge of Barrow and Dalton, the applicant will be 

required to demonstrate how the development integrates within existing landscape 

features and is physically linked to the settlement and does not lead to an unacceptable 

intrusion into the open countryside or would result in the visual or physical coalescence 

of settlements; 
 

 

l)    The proposal will not harm the historic environment, heritage assets or their setting; 
 

 

m)    There would be no unacceptable effects on the amenities and living conditions of 

surrounding properties from overlooking, loss of light, the overbearing nature of the 

proposal or an unacceptable increase in on-street parking; and 
 

 

n)    The development must comply with Policy N3 and the design principles set out in 

the Development Strategy chapter should be followed. 
 

 

The site should make effective use of previously developed land where possible. 
 
 

 
Policy H8 - Housing in Residential Gardens 

Proposals for housing development in existing residential gardens will be permitted 

providing all of the following criteria can be met: 
 

 

a) The scale, design and siting of the proposal would not result in a cramped form of 

development out of character with the surrounding environment; 
 

 

b) A useable shape and scale of garden proportionate to the dwelling size, including

Page 103

Agenda Item 9



 

 

 
private space, that reflects the form and character of those predominant in the area, can 

be created for both the proposed new house and the existing house; 
 

 

c) The site is served by a suitable access and the proposal does not compromise any 

existing access arrangement; 
 

 

d) The proposal, by way of design, siting, boundary treatments and landscaping 

integrates seamlessly into the surrounding built, natural and, where relevant, historic 

environment; 
 

 

e) There would be no unacceptable effects on the amenities and living conditions of 

surrounding properties from overlooking, loss of light, the overbearing nature of the 

proposal or an unacceptable increase in street parking; 
 

 

f) The proposal does not prejudice the development potential of an adjacent site; 
 

 

g) The proposal is capable of demonstrating how it will enhance the ease of movement 

for wildlife and the creation of habitat; and 
 

 

h) Development should not cause unjustifiable harm to the significance of any heritage 

assets on or otherwise affected by the development. 
 

 
 
 
 

Policy H9 - Housing Density 

Developers can determine the most appropriate density on a site by site basis, providing 

that the scheme meets the design principles set out in this Plan and is appropriate to the 

character of the location of the development in negotiation with the planning authority. 
 

 

Variations in density will be supported on larger sites in order to create distinctive 

character areas. 
 

 

Policy HE3 - Listed Buildings 

Proposals for works to listed buildings, including alterations, extensions or change of 

use and development affecting setting should not cause unacceptable harm to its 

significance, including those elements which contribute to their special architectural or 

historic interest, and setting. Opportunities to enhance and better reveal their 

significance will be supported. 
 

 

Substantial harm to, or loss of, a Grade II listed building should be exceptional.

Page 104

Agenda Item 9



 

 

 
Substantial harm to, or loss of, Grade I and II* listed buildings should be wholly 

exceptional. 
 

 

Proposals which involve substantial harm to, or loss of, a listed building including to its 

setting, will be refused unless it can be demonstrated that the substantial harm or loss is 

necessary to achieve substantial benefits that outweigh that harm or loss, or all of the 

following apply: 
 

 

a)    The nature of the heritage asset prevents all reasonable uses of the site; 
 

 

b)    That no viable use of the heritage asset itself can be found in the medium term 

through appropriate marketing that will enable its conservation; 
 

 

c)    That conservation through grant-funding or some form of charitable or public 

ownership is demonstrably not possible; and 

d)    The harm or loss is outweighed by the benefit of bringing the site back into use. 

Where a development proposal will lead to less than substantial harm to the significance 

of a designated heritage asset, this harm should be weighted against the public benefits 

of the proposal, including securing its optimum viable use. 
 
 

 
Policy N1 - Protecting and enhancing landscape character 

Land use proposals should protect and enhance where appropriate, local landscape 

character, as defined by contemporary adopted local landscape character guidance, 

currently the Cumbria Landscape Character Guidance and Toolkit. In addition, major 

land use proposals will require an assessment of the effects of the proposed 

development on landscape character and visual effects at the time of submission. 
 

 

Where new development will impact upon the character of the landscape, such impact 

will need to be minimised and priority will be given to protecting and enhancing the 

landscape's distinct assets. Where there is loss or damage to the assets, the applicant 

must submit a statement demonstrating that this is unavoidable e.g. the development 

cannot be sited elsewhere due to operational requirements.  In cases such as these, the 

unavoidable damage must be mitigated, and unavoidable loss must be compensated 

for, so that there is no net loss in resources. 
 

 

High protection will be given to the undeveloped coast in order to maintain its openness, 

tranquillity, heritage and nature conservation value and to maintain the Borough's

Page 105

Agenda Item 9



 

 

 
recreation and tourism appeal. 

 

 

High protection will also be given to the setting of the Lake District National Park in order 

to maintain the valued views to and from this nationally designated area, its tranquillity 

and its attractiveness to tourists. 
 

 

Measures to enhance the character of the Borough's landscape will be supported, with 

particular importance given to the following: 
 
 

 
a)    Improved access to the landscape for recreation and tourism, including managed 

access to the undeveloped coast. 
 

 

b)    The regeneration of unsightly brownfield sites, particularly former industrial sites. 
 

 

c)    Increase in tree and woodland cover where such planting complements the scale of 

the landscape. 
 

 

d)    Enhancement of the nature conservation value of the landscape. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Policy N3 - Protecting biodiversity and geodiversity 

The Council will support development which maintains, protects and enhances 

biodiversity across the Borough. Proposals for new development should minimise 

impacts on biodiversity and provide net gains in biodiversity where possible. Proposals 

will be expected to improve access to important biodiversity areas, and will be required 

to show full details of measures to achieve this in the form of a suitable Management 

Plan. Consideration must be given to the Council's Biodiversity and Development 

Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) and any other relevant guidance. 
 

 

Designated biodiversity and geodiversity sites 
 

 

There is a presumption in favour of the preservation and enhancement of sites of 

international and national importance. Development proposals that would cause a direct 

or indirect adverse effect on any site of international or national importance, including its 

qualifying habitats and species will only be permitted where the Council and relevant

Page 106

Agenda Item 9



 

 

 
partner organisations are satisfied that: 

 

 

.;    The adverse effect cannot be avoided (for example through locating the 

development on an alternative site); and 
 

 

.;     Any adverse impacts can be mitigated for example through appropriate      habitat 

creation, restoration or enhancement on site or in another      appropriate location, in 

agreement with the Council and relevant partner      organisations, via planning 

conditions, agreements or obligations. 
 

 

Where mitigation is not possible or viable or where there would still be significant 

residual harm following mitigation, compensation measures should be made to provide 

an area of equivalent or greater biodiversity value. Compensation should be secured 

through planning conditions or planning obligations. 
 

 

Special compensation considerations apply in the case of Natura 2000 sites. If harm to 

such sites is allowed because the development meets the above criteria and imperative 

reasons of overriding public interest have been demonstrated, the European Habitats 

and Wild Birds Directive requires that all necessary compensatory measures are taken 

to ensure the overall coherence of the network of European Sites as a whole is 

protected. 
 

 

Local wildlife sites and geological designations such as County wildlife sites, wildlife 

corridors and Local Geological Sites (LGS) will be afforded a high degree of protection 

from potentially harmful development, unless a strong socio-economic need can be 

demonstrated and the development cannot be situated in a less sensitive location. 
 

 

Assessing the effects of development on biodiversity and geodiversity 
 

 

Proposals for new development which may result in significant harm to biodiversity must 

be accompanied by appropriate surveys, undertaken by a suitably qualified person, to 

identify the potential effects of development. In such cases, the mitigation hierarchy, as 

referenced in the Council's Biodiversity and Development SPD should be applied and it 

must be demonstrated that avoidance measures have been considered and justification 

for ruling these out must be given. Where significant harm is avoidable, it should be 

adequately mitigated, or as a last resort, compensated for. 
 

 

Where mitigation is required in the form of species translocation, the Council will work 

with partners to identify suitable sites for translocation.

Page 107

Agenda Item 9



 

 

 
Where there is evidence to suspect the presence of protected species, the planning 

application should be accompanied by appropriate, up-to-date surveys carried out at the 

correct time of year for the particular species assessing their presence to ensure that the 

proposal is sympathetic to the ecological interests of the site. 
 

 

Policy N4 - Protecting other wildlife features 

New development should conserve and enhance biodiversity features, and proposals for 

new development should be submitted with landscaping proposals, including a 

Management Plan, which show how existing trees, riparian corridors/trees, hedgerows, 

ponds and other wildlife features will be integrated into the development. Landscaping 

proposals should also include new trees and other planting of suitable species for the 

location to enhance the landscape of the site and its surroundings as appropriate. 
 

 

Trees which positively contribute to the visual amenity and environmental value of that 

location will be protected. New development should not result in the loss of or damage 

to ancient woodland or veteran or aged trees outside woodland. 
 

 

Where the conservation of biodiversity features cannot be achieved, the applicant must 

justify their loss. Where the Council is satisfied that the loss is adequately justified, 

replacement trees, hedgerows, ponds and other wildlife features will be required. 
 

 

Proposals which include landscaping proposals, replacement of wildlife features, new 

wildlife features, or which integrate existing wildlife features into the development, will be 

required to demonstrate that measures will be put in place to manage these features as 

appropriate, including the use of suitable legal agreements. 

Page 108

Agenda Item 9


	Agenda
	6 Confirmation of Minutes
	8 Delegated Approvals - For Information (Booklet attached)
	9 Planning Applications (Booklet attached).
	2020/0080 Schneider Road 
	Consultation responses 
	Officers Report 
	Recommendation
	Plans

	2020/0249 123 Rawlinson Street 
	Consultation responses
	Officers Report 
	Recommendation
	Plans 
	Photo 

	2020/0277 Stone Dyke Lane 
	Consultation responses 
	Officers Report 
	Recommendation
	Photos
	Plans 

	Policy Appendix


